
 
 

Shelton City Council Meeting Agenda 
April 1, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. 

Civic Center & Virtual Platform 
  
 
  
 
A.  Call to Order 

• Pledge of Allegiance 
• Roll Call 
• Late Changes to the Agenda   

B.  Council Reports   
C.  Consent Agenda (Action) 

 1.  Vouchers numbered 112679 through 112725 and EFT payment numbers 1097 through 1118 in the total   
      amount of $389,361.34 
 2.  Vouchers numbered 112739 through 112772 and EFT payment numbers 1119 through 1138 in the total   
      amount of $120,179.96 
 3.  Payroll warrants numbered 4040 through 4041 and 14558 through 14653. Warrants 112728 through 
      112738 in the amount of $364,949.00 
 4.  Payroll warrant numbered 14654. Warrants 112774 through 112776 in the amount of $1,531.68 
 5.  Resolution No. 1369-0225 Budget Commitment for Post-Construction Monitoring at C Street Landfill 

      6.  Resolution No. 1370-0225 SPD Towing Contract 
      7.  Minutes: 

• Business Meeting of January 21, 2025 
                      
D.  General Public Comment (3-minute time limit) 
      The Council invites members of the public to provide comments on any City-related topic. To make comments in person, please 
        sign in on the public comment sheet and keep an instruction card. If you would like to comment on an Action item, please write 
        the agenda item number on the list. To comment virtually using Zoom, please use the “Raise Hand” feature to alert the City Clerk. 
        If you have joined Zoom on your telephone, dial *9 to use the “Raise Hand” feature. City Councilmembers and City Staff will not enter 
        into a dialogue during public comment. If the Council feels an issue requires follow up, Staff will be directed to respond at an    
        appropriate time. 
 
E.  Presentations 
     1.  Law Enforcement Memorial Induction      
     2.  Proclamation – Child Abuse Prevention Month 
 
F.  Business Agenda (Study/No Action) 
     1.  Resolution No. 1366-1224 WSDOT Striping Maintenance Agreement Amendment #1 – Presented by Public   
          Works Director Jay Harris 
     2.  Resolution No. 1374-0325 Gray & Osborne Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Water Tank Design Contract  
          Amendment No. 5 – Presented by Assistant Public Works Director Brent Armstrong 
     3.  Resolution No. 1362-1124 Transpo Group Agreement No. 24-007-PSA for Systemic Pedestrian Safety 
          & Olympic Hwy. North Improvement Design Services – Presented by Assistant Public Works Director  
          Aaron Nix 
     4.  Resolution No. 1376-0325 Transportation Benefit District (TBD) Ballot Proposition – Presented by City  
          Manager Mark Ziegler 
 



  
  
 
G.  Action Agenda (Action/Public Comment Taken) 
     1.  Resolution No. 1350-0924 Work Order #SCJ-25001 – Mid-Block Crossing (OBJH) Safety Improvement   
          Design – Presented by Asst. Public Works Director Aaron Nix 
 
H.  Administration Reports 
      1.  City Manager Report 
 
 I.  New Items for Discussion 
 
J.  Announcement of Next Meeting – April 15, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
K.  Adjourn 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Special Note for Virtual Public Participation 
 

The meeting can be viewed at: https://www.youtube.com/user/cityofshelton 

The public can provide comments virtually by: 
Email:  donna.nault@sheltonwa.gov (before 4:00pm the day of the meeting)  

Telephone: (360) 432-5103 (before 4:00pm the day of the meeting) 
 

Your comments will be relayed directly to the Council. 

https://www.youtube.com/user/cityofshelton
mailto:donna.nault@sheltonwa.gov


 

Updated 3/26/2025 
 

  
2025 Looking Ahead 
    (Items and dates are subject to change) 

 
 

 
Tues. 4/8 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
• Comp. Plan Land Use Update 
• Multi-Family Tax Exemption Ordinance 

Packet Items Due: 
4/4 @ noon 

Tues. 4/15 
6:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
• February Financial Status Report 

Business Agenda 
• Resolution No. 1375-0325 Work Order 

#PMX-25001 for MBR Headworks 
Upgrade/Design 

• Resolution No. 1377-0325 Work Order 
#PMX-25002 for Goldsborough Creek Sewer 
Bypass Removal Project (Design) 

Public Hearing 
•  

Action Agenda 
• Resolution No. 1366-1224 WSDOT City 

Street Striping Contract Amendment 
• Resolution No. 1374-0325 Gray & Osborne 

Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design 
Contract Amend. No. 5 

• Resolution No. 1362-1124 Agreement #24-
007-PSA for Systemic Ped. Safety & Olympic 
Hwy North Improvements Design Services 

• Resolution No. 1376-0325 Proposed TBD 
Ballot Measure 

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
4/4 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 4/22 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
4/18 @ noon 

Mon. 5/5 
8:30 a.m. 

Special Meeting Council Retreat N/A 

Tues. 5/6 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda 
•  

Public Hearing 
•  

Action Agenda 
• Resolution No. 1375-0325 Work Order 

#PMX-25001 for MBR Headworks 
Upgrade/Desing  

Packet Items Due: 
4/25 @ 5:00 p.m. 



 

Updated 3/26/2025 
 

• Resolution No. 1377-0325 Work Order 
#PMX-25002 for Goldsborough Creek Sewer 
Bypass Removal Project (Design) 

Administration Reports 
•  

Tues. 5/13 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
5/9 @ noon 

Tues. 5/20 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
• March Financial Status Report 

Business Agenda 
•  

Public Hearing 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Reports 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
5/9 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 5/27 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
5/22 @ noon 

Tues. 6/3 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda 
•  

Public Hearing 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Reports 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
5/22 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 6/10 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
6/6 @ noon 

Other – TBD 

• International Property Maintenance Code 
• Downtown Street Tree/Sidewalk Repair Project 
• Civic Center Police Area Fencing Project 
• MBR Treatment Plant Tank Project 
• Angleside Pressure Zone Improvement Project 
• Civic Center Uninterrupted Power Supply (UPS) Replacement Project (State Contract Procurement) 
• Shelton Reservoir Vent Hood Replacement Project 





































































Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item C5) 
 
Touch Date:   02/11/2025  
Brief Date:     03/18/2025      
Consent Date: 04/01/2025   
 

Department:  Finance  
 
Presented By:  Mike Githens, Finance Director  

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
   Budget Commitment for Post-  
   Construction Monitoring at C Street  
   Landfill 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
  - Resolution No. 1369-0225  
 

    

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 None 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head       MG 

 
 

 
Finance Director       MG 

 
 

 
Attorney      KH 

 
 

 
City Clerk     DN 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
    MZ      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
The City has been working closely with the Department of Ecology to complete the environmental cleanup and 
closure of the C-Street Landfill. Under Agreed Order No DE 19541, the City of Shelton is financially responsible 
for the site’s ongoing post-construction monitoring and maintenance.  
To ensure the City can meet these long-term obligations, the Department of Ecology requires the development 
of a 20-year cost estimate and proof of financial capability to cover associated costs. Adoption of Resolution 
No. 1369-0225 formalizes the City’s commitment to funding these activities, with the initial 20-year cost 
estimate attached as Exhibit A.  
While the cost estimate must be updated and submitted to the Dept. of Ecology annually, Resolution No. 1369 
0225 remains in effect unless financial circumstances necessitate a revision.  
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
The City has invested along with funding from State of Washington Department of Ecology to clean up the C 
Street Landfill. There is a requirement for future financial commitment to maintain the Agreed Order and 
complete the project that has significant investment. The Resolution being presented commits future financial 
and budget obligations until the Agreed Order is sufficiently satisfied and the landfill is deemed to be 
permanently close by Department of Ecology.   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
Currently there is a balance in the Solid Waste Fund of approximately $280,000. Annual estimates for post 
construction amounts total approximately $49,000. At some point in the future when the Solid Waste Fund is 
depleted, a new source for the payment of post-construction amounts will require budget from the General 
Fund.  
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Additional information can be obtained from the City Clerk.  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
“I move to approve Resolution 1369-0225 as part of the consent agenda.” 



RESOLUTION  N0.  1369-0225

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  OF  SHELTON,  WASHINGTON,

COMMITTING  TO  BUDGET  FOR  POST-CONSTRUCTION  MONITORING

AT  THE  C-STREET  LANDFILL

WHEREAS,  pursuant  to an Agreed  Order  with  the  Department  of  Ecology,  the City  of  Shelton

completed  an environmental  cleanup  and closure  of  the C-Street  Landfill;  and

WHEREAS,  the clean-up  and closure  were  funded  through  a grant  from  the  Department  of

Ecology,  with  matching  funds  from  the City;  and

WHEREAS,  per  the  Agreed  Order,  the City  is financially  responsible  for  post-construction

monitoring,  including  yearly  topographical  surveys,  groundwater  sampling,  and maintenance  of

the cap;  and

WHEREAS,  the  Department  of  Ecology  has required  the  City  Council  to adopt  a resolution

committing  to set aside  funds  in  the City's  annual  budget  for  post-construction  monitoring  on an

ongoing  basis;  and

WHEREAS,  the City  has completed  a 20-year  estimate  for  monitoring  costs,  which  is attached

to this  Resolution  as Exhibit  A.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  the City  Council  of  the City  of  Shelton  hereby  resolves,  on an ongoing

basis,  to set aside  funds  in  the City's  annual  budget  to cover  the estimated  costs  of  post-

construction  monitoring.

Passed  by  the City  Council  at its  regular  meeting  held  on the Ist day April  of 2025.

ATTEST: Mayor  Onisko

City  Clerk  Nault



20-Year  Cost  Estimate  - Post  Construction  Activities
City  of  Shelton,  C Street  Landfill

Resolution  No. 1369-0225

Exhibit  A

20 YEAR  COST ESTIMATE  - POSTCONSTRUCTION  /CLEANUP  ACTIVITIES
I

Post-Construdion  Monitoring  Adivity ' Year 1 ' ' Year2 Year 3 Year 4 ' Year5 ' Year 10 Year 15 Year 20 ' Totals by Task "

'Annual  topographic  surveyaa (all years) $ 4,169 $ 4,433 $ 4,433 $ 4,433 $ 4,433 $ 22,165 $ 22,165 $ 22,165 $ 84,228

aAnnual cap inspedions  and reportinga (Year 2 onward) 5 io,sgo $ io,sgo $ io,sgo $ 10,590 $ 52,950 $ 52,950 $ 52,950 $ 201,210

Semi-annual  groundwater  sampling and informal  reporting'  (Years 1-5) $ 29,227 $ 29,229 $ 29,229 $ 29,229 $ 29,229 $ 116,916

$ gs,ooo

$ 20,000

"Annual  maintenance  of cap (all years) $ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ s,ooo $ 5,000 $ 25,000 $ 25,000 $ 25,000

"5-year  reviews with Ecology (Year 5, 10, 15, and 20) $ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ 5,000

Total by Year (2024 Dollars) $ 33,396 $ 49,252 $ 49,252 $ 49,252 $ 54,252 $ 105,115 $ 105,115 $ 105,115 $ 517,354

Total by year plus annual inflation  rate ' $ 33,396 $ 49,252 $ 50,237 $ 51,242 $ 57,573 $ 123,159 $ 135,978 $ 150,130 $ 617,571

Total by year plus annual inflation  rate and 10'!"o contingency $ 54,177 $ 55,261 $ 56,366 $ 63,330 $ 135,475 $ 149,576 $ 165,144 $ 679,328

Note!i

Costs for Year 1 already completed  under current  Asped  contrad  and not figured into Totals by Task column.

Sales tax is not applicable  to any of the adivities,  as all will be performed  by a Consultant  or in-house staff.

a Costs assume Task is performed  by a Consultant;  however,  the City could perform  the task to save costs.

** Task described is anticipated  to be completed by Ecology and/or  the City; no Consultant  fees are included.

' Costs shown in 2024 dollars. Totals  by Task column does not include costs for  Year 1, which was already completed.

' Completed by a subcontraded  licensed surveyor.  Costs shown assume that  the surveyor  is subcontraded  by a Consultant.  The City could contract  the surveyor  diredly  to save on costs.

a Costs shown assume Consultant  performs  annual cap inspections  and reporting,  and include Consultant  PM & Progress Reporting.  This task could be performed  by the City, under supervision  by a City engineer.

'  Assumes that  Ecology-approves  ceasing groundwater  monitoring  after  Year 5. Costs shown include Consultant  PM & Progress Reporting

a Estimated 2% annual inflation  rate.

Financial  Assurances
Approved  October  2024



Council Briefing Form   

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item C6) 

Touch Date: 02/26/2025 
Brief Date: 03/18/2025 
Consent Date:  04/01/2025 

 

Department: Police  
 
Presented By: Chris Kostad 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
    Summit Towing Contract 

 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
   - Resolution No. 1370-0225 
   - Draft Towing Contract 
    
    

 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution  

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

   

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

  

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
MZ      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
The Shelton Police Department utilizes Summit Towing services for impounds, evidence seizure tows, and if 
needed, evidence storage of vehicles. Impound fees are the responsibility of the registered owner of the vehicle 
being towed if it does not need to be seized as evidence for an investigation. However, in the event a vehicle 
needs to be seized as evidence and is subsequently towed the Shelton Police Department is responsible for 
the towing service and potential storage fees for the vehicle. The fees that the Shelton Police Department 
realizes for towing the vehicle can range from $300.00 - $500.00 per vehicle. 
 
Summit Towing, a local towing company in Mason County, has agreed to enter into a contract with the Shelton 
Police Department for towing services. Per the contract, the flat rate fee for an evidentiary towing and other 
towing services would be $125.00 for the first 25 miles and $5.00 per mile thereafter. 

 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A  
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION: 
N/A  
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS: 
Information is available through the City Clerk.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
“I move to approve Resolution No. 1370-0225 as part of the consent agenda.” 

 



   

RESOLUTION NO. 1370-0225 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON 
AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT FOR TOWING SERVICES BETWEEN THE SHELTON POLICE  

DEPARTMENT AND SUMMIT TOWING 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Shelton’s Police Department is required to remove vehicles while conducting 
official police duties and must utilize a towing service to do so. 
 
WHEREAS, Summit Towing has agreed to enter into a contract with the Shelton Police Department to 
provide towing services. 
 
WHEREAS, the contract will provide the services to the Shelton Police Department at a lower flat rate 
that would increase efficiency as it relates to time and associated costs.  
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, as follows: 
 

1. The City hereby agrees with the terms set forth in the contract between Shelton Police 
Department and Summit Towing. 
 

2. The City Manager is authorized to sign the contract. 
 
INTRODUCED on the 18th of March 2025 and PASSED by the City Council at its regular meeting on the 
1st of April 2025. 
 
 
 
 
                                                                          __________________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Onisko 
 
   
____________________________  
City Clerk Nault  
 
 
 



 

Contract for Towing Services 
Between Summit Towing and the City of Shelton 

This Agreement is entered into on this ___ day of ____________, 2025, by and between 
Summit Towing, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “Summit Towing”) and the City of Shelton 
(hereinafter referred to as “the City”). 

1. Scope of Services 
Summit Towing agrees to provide evidence and vehicle towing services to the City as described 
below: 

• Response time: 30 minutes within the City limits 
• Vehicle storage capacity: 80-100 vehicles, including space for semi-trucks and trailers. 
• Secured facility to prevent vandalism or theft. 
• Tow operator and truck availability: 

o Monday-Friday: 4 to 5 operators. 
o Saturday-Sunday: 2 to 3 operators. 
o Expansion of staff as hiring progresses. 

2. Rates for Services 
Summit Towing will provide the following services at the listed rates: 

• Flat Rate Tows: $125 (includes 25 miles and use of dollies). 
o The first 25 miles are included in flat rate, $5.00 per mile after. 

• Storage Fees: 
o Inside storage: $82 per day to the registered owner. 
o Outside storage: $82 per day to the registered owner. 

• Other Services: 
o Lockouts: $80 (Class A), $100 (Class B). 
o Jumpstarts and tire changes: $80 (Class A), $100 (Class B). 
o Winch-outs: $125 flat rate. 
o Medium-duty wrecker (Class B): $175 per hour with a 1-hour minimum, port-to-

port. 
o Standby rate: $0 (subject to renegotiation if issues arise). 

3. Evidence Vehicle Handling 
Summit Towing agrees to retrieve vehicles from the City’s evidence hold promptly once 
notified. The impound process will commence immediately thereafter. 

4. Licenses and Compliance 
Summit Towing affirms it is a licensed Registered Tow Truck Operator (RTTO) with the State 
of Washington. It shall keep its license in good standing and comply with all applicable laws and 
regulations. 



 

5. Terms and Termination 
This agreement shall remain in effect until terminated by either party with 30 days’ written 
notice. 

6. Indemnification and Insurance   
Summit Towing shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees and 
volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney 
fees, arising out of or in connection with the performance of this Agreement, except for injuries 
and damages caused by the negligence of the City. 
 
Summit Towing shall procure and maintain insurance, as required in this Section, without 
interruption from commencement of the work through the term of the Contract. 
 
Summit Towing’s maintenance of insurance, its scope of coverage and limits as required herein 
shall not be construed to limit the liability of Summit Towing to the coverage provided by such 
insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in equity. 
Summit Towing’s required insurance shall be of the types and coverage as stated below: 

1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and leased 
vehicles. Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 
00 01. 

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as broad as ISO occurrence form 
CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent 
contractors, products-completed operations, stop gap liability, personal injury and 
advertising injury, and liability assumed under an insured contract.  The Commercial 
General Liability insurance shall be endorsed to provide a per project general aggregate 
limit using ISO form CG 25 03 05 09 or an endorsement providing at least as broad 
coverage.  The City shall be named as an additional insured under Summit Towing’s 
Commercial General Liability insurance policy with respect to the work performed for 
the City using ISO Additional Insured endorsement CG 20 10 10 01 and Additional 
Insured-Completed Operations endorsement CG 20 37 10 01 or substitute endorsements 
providing at least as broad coverage. 

3. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of the State 
of Washington. 

 

Summit Towing shall maintain the following insurance limits: 
1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily injury 

and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident. 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 

$2,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate and $2,000,000 products-
completed operations aggregate limits 

 
If Summit Towing maintains higher insurance limits than the minimums shown above, the City 
shall be insured for the full available limits of  Commercial General  and Excess or Umbrella 
liability maintained by Summit Towing, irrespective of whether such limits maintained by 
Summit Towing are greater than those required by this Contract or whether any certificate of 



 

insurance furnished to the City evidences limits of liability lower than those maintained by 
Summit Towing. 
 
Summit Towing’s Automobile Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance policies are 
to contain, or be endorsed to contain that they shall be primary insurance as respect the City.  
Any insurance, self-insurance, or self-insured pool coverage maintained by the City shall be 
excess of Summit Towing’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 
 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than A: VII. 
Summit Towing shall furnish the City with original certificates and a copy of the amendatory 
endorsements evidencing the insurance requirements of Summit Towing.  Upon request by the 
City, Summit Towing shall furnish certified copies of all required insurance policies, including 
endorsements, required in this Contract. 
 
Summit Towing shall provide the City with written notice of any policy cancellation within two 
business days of their receipt of such notice. 
 
Failure on the part of Summit Towing to maintain the insurance as required shall constitute a 
material breach of contract, upon which the City may, after giving five business days notice to 
Summit Towing to correct the breach, immediately terminate the Contract or, at its discretion, 
procure or renew such insurance and pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, with any 
sums so expended to be repaid to the City on demand, or at the sole discretion of the City, offset 
against funds due Summit Towing from the City. 

7. Amendments 
This agreement may be amended only in writing, signed by both parties. The City Manager shall 
be authorized to approve amendments that do not materially alter the scope of this Agreement. 

8. Signatures 
By signing below, both parties agree to the terms outlined in this contract. 

 

For Summit Towing, Inc.: 
Name: _________________________ 
Title: __________________________ 
Signature: ______________________ 
Date: __________________________ 

 

For City of Shelton 
Name: Mark Ziegler 
Title: City Manager 
Signature: __________________________ 
Date: ______________________________ 



 
 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON - CITY COUNCIL 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
January 21, 2025 – 6:00 p.m. 

Civic Center & Virtual Platform 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL  
Councilmembers: Personnel: 
Mayor Eric Onisko Acting City Manager Mike Githens  
Deputy Mayor Sharon Schirman City Clerk Donna Nault 
George Blush Police Chief Chris Kostad  
Tom Gilmore Parks & Recreation Supervisor Jordanne Krumpols 
Miguel Gutierrez Assistant Public Works Director Aaron Nix  
Lyndsey Sapp Community & Economic Development Director Jae Hill 
Melissa Stearns     
   
CALL TO ORDER 
Call to Order: 6:00 p.m. 
Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Onisko 
Roll Call: City Clerk Nault – All Present 
 
LATE CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
None 
 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
None 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Vouchers numbered 112220 through 112265 and EFT payment numbers 897 through 927 in the total   

amount of $273,869.25 
2. Vouchers numbered 112285 through 112309 and EFT payment numbers 928 through 940 in the total   

amount of $284,077.86 
3. Payroll warrants numbered 4021 through 4025 and 14060 through 14061. Warrants 112266 through    
    112284 in the amount of $653,708.95 
4. Payroll warrants numbered 112315 through 112316 in the amount of $51,637.29 
5. Parks Advisory Committee Reappointment 
6. Arts Commission Reappointments 
7. Resolution No. 1361-1124 Safe Routes to School Construction Final Acceptance 
8. Minutes: 

• Business Meeting of December 3, 2024 
• Study Session of December 10, 2024 

 
City Clerk Nault read the items on the consent agenda. A motion was made by Councilmember Gutierrez and 
seconded by Councilmember Stearns to approve the consent agenda as read. Passed. 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT (3-minute time limit) 
In-Person: Zoom: 
Erin Martinache     None 
Kathy McDowell 
Dean Jewett 
 
PRESENTATIONS 



 

City Council – January 21, 2025 - Meeting Minutes 
Civic Center & Virtual Platform  Page 2 of 3 

1. Shelton Police Department Officer of the Year – Presented by Police Captain Dan Patton 
 
Police Captain Patton presented the Officer of the Year award to Detective Corporal Mike Gettle. Discussion 
followed. 
 
2. November Financial Status Report – Presented by Finance Director Mike Githens 
 
Finance Director Githens presented an overview of the financial reports through the month of November. 
Discussion followed. 
    
BUSINESS AGENDA 
1. Parks Advisory Committee Appointments – Presented by Parks & Recreation Supervisor Jordanne  
    Krumpols 
 
Parks & Recreation Supervisor Krumpols presented information regarding the Parks Advisory Committee 
appointments. No discussion.  
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Gutierrez and seconded by Councilmember Blush to forward the 
appointments to the Parks Advisory Committee to the consent agenda of the February 4, 2025 council meeting 
for further consideration. Passed. 
 
ACTION AGENDA 
1. Resolution No. 1357-1124 Accepting Memorandum of Agreement with WSU Extension – Presented by  
    Parks & Recreation Supervisor Jordanne Krumpols 
 
Parks & Recreation Supervisor Krumpols presented information regarding accepting the agreement with WSU 
Extension. No discussion. No public comment. City Clerk Nault provided a reading of Resolution No. 1357-
1124. 
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Gutierrez and seconded by Councilmember Stearns to adopt 
Resolution No. 1357-1124 as presented. Passed. 
 
2. Resolution No. 1363-1124 On-Call A&E Consultant Pool Agreements – Presented by Assistant Public 
    Works Director Aaron Nix 
 
Assistant Public Works Director Nix presented information regarding the on-call consultant pool agreement. 
Discussion followed. No public comment. City Clerk Nault provided a reading of Resolution No. 1363-1124. 
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Gutierrez and seconded by Councilmember Stearns to adopt 
Resolution No. 1363-1124 as presented. Passed. 
 
3. Resolution No. 1367-1224 Establishing a Creative District – Presented by Community & Economic  
    Development Director Jae Hill 
 
Community & Economic Development Director Hill presented information regarding establishing a creative 
district. Discussion followed. No public comment. City Clerk Nault provided a reading of Resolution No. 1367-
1224. 
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Gutierrez and seconded by Councilmember Gilmore to adopt 
Resolution No. 1367-1224 as presented. Passed. 
4. Ordinance No. 2028-1224 Repealing SMC 5.32 For-Hire Vehicles – Presented by Acting City Manager Mike  
    Githens 



 

City Council – January 21, 2025 - Meeting Minutes 
Civic Center & Virtual Platform  Page 3 of 3 

Acting City Manager Githens presented information regarding repealing SMC 5.32. No discussion. No public 
comment. City Clerk Nault provided a reading of Ordinance No. 2028-1224. 
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Gutierrez and seconded by Councilmember Gilmore to adopt 
Ordinance No. 2028-1224 as presented. Passed.  
 
5. Council Board & Committee Assignments – Presented by Acting City Manager Mike Githens. 
 
Acting City Manager Githens presented information regarding Council board & committee assignments. No 
changes in assignments other than what the Council discussed at the study session held on January 14, 2025. 
(Councilmember Gilmore will be the city representative on the MTA board and Mayor Onisko will be the city 
representative on the MACECOM board.) No public comment.  
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Gutierrez and seconded by Deputy Mayor Schirman to approve the 
amended 2025 Council board and committee assignments as presented. Passed. 
 
ADMINISTRATION REPORT 
1. City Manager Report 

• Public Works is ready for any winter weather 
• Public forum will be held on February 5th, 6:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. regarding sidewalk repairs and 

downtown street trees 
 
NEW ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING 
Study Session – January 28, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. – Cancelled  
City Council Meeting – February 4, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
MEETING ADJOURN 
Mayor Onisko adjourned the meeting at 6:48 p.m. 
 
 
 
___________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor Eric Onisko  City Clerk Donna Nault 



 

City of Shelton 
Designating April 2025 as Child Abuse Prevention Month 

PROCLAMATION 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Shelton recognizes our future rests in the hands of our most vulnerable and 
cherished assets – our children; and 
 
WHEREAS, all children deserve to live in safe, stable, and nurturing environments which promote their 
healthy growth and development; and 
 
WHEREAS, child abuse, neglect and other trauma are recognized as serious public health problems 
affecting both the current and future quality of life in our community; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the responsibility of our community to ensure parents, caregivers and other adults who 
influence the health and well-being of children have the support, knowledge, and concrete resources 
necessary to ensure all children thrive to their greatest potential; and 
 
WHEREAS, effective child abuse prevention strategies succeed because of partnerships among agencies, 
schools, religious organizations, law enforcement agencies, health care providers, and the business 
community; and 
 
WHEREAS, we as City of Shelton residents continue our commitment to protecting all members of our 
community and call upon all citizens to join together to increase public safety and prevent the further 
abuse and neglect of our children. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Shelton City Council does hereby proclaim April 2025 as Child Abuse Prevention 
Month in the City of Shelton, and urges all citizens, communities, state agencies, faith groups, medical 
facilities, elected leaders, medical providers, educators, and businesses to increase their participation in 
efforts to support families, thereby preventing child abuse and strengthening the community in which 
we live. 
 
Signed this 1st day of April 2025. 
 
 

_________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                      Mayor Eric Onisko 

 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F1) 
 
Touch Date: 12/24/2024  
Brief Date:    04/01/2025     
Action Date: 04/15/2025   
 

Department: Public Works  
 
Presented By: Jay Harris, Public Works Director  

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
 WSDOT Striping Maintenance    
  Agreement Amendment #1 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
  - Resolution No. 1366-1224 
  - WSDOT Maintenance Agreement   
     Amendment #1 
  - WSDOT 2019 Striping Maintenance  
     Agreement 
 

    

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 None 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head       J.O.H. 

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk DN 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
MZ      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
Every spring the City has roadway centerlines, medians, and fog lines repainted. Prior to 2018, the City would 
utilize private contractors to complete the striping work through a yearly bidding process that several times led 
to delays in completing the needed work during the dry/warm weather months due to the availability of 
contractors in this area.  
 
On 9/3/2019, the City entered a 5-year maintenance contract with the Washington State Department of 
Transportation (WSDOT) to complete the yearly striping for the City at an estimated cost of $62,000 over the 
five-year period 2019-2023. WSDOT is requesting that the original agreement is amended to include the 
striping work completed last summer (2024), and for reimbursement for the actual WSDOT 
labor/materials/equipment costs per year, as outlined in the original contract. Attached is the proposed 
Maintenance Agreement Amendment #1 from WSDOT that includes the cost for 2024 striping work and the 
actual costs incurred for the work completed in 2019 through 2024. The new total authorized cost in the 
contract amendment is $103,698.44, or an average of $17,283.07 over each of the 6 years.  
 
The WSDOT striping agreements moving forward will be year by year, with an estimated cost of approximately 
$20,000, falling under the $30,000 contract signing authority of the City Manager.  
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
The yearly roadway striping costs are included in the yearly street maintenance budget that are funded by the 
Transportation Benefit District (TBD) and General Fund revenues. 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Contact the Public Works department for information pertaining to this project. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends: “I move to place Resolution No. 1366-1224 on the action agenda for further consideration at 
the April 15, 2025 Council meeting”. 



RESOLUTION NO. 1366-1224 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE STRIPING MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT AMENDMENT NO. 1 WITH THE 

WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  
 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Shelton has pavement striping on collector roadways that consists of 7.2 miles of 
double yellow lines, 2.7 miles of skip/solid yellow lines, 7.8 miles of skip yellow lines, 1.6 miles of 8” 
white gore lines, 2.3 miles of skip white lines, and 13.9 miles of white fog lines; and 
 
WHEREAS, restriping of the collector roadways in the city is needed every year; and  
 
WHEREAS, prior to 2019, the city contracted with private companies that several times led to delays in 
completing the needed work during the dry/warm weather months due to the availability of contractors 
in this area; and  
 
WHEREAS, in 2019 the City of Shelton entered a 5-year Striping Maintenance Agreement #JC8574 with 
Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) for work in 2019 through 2023 for an 
estimated cost of $62,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2019 agreement states that the city reimburse WSDOT for the actual direct and related 
costs of the work; and 
 
WHEREAS, the striping work completed in 2024 was not included in the 2019 Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, WSDOT prepared the attached striping Maintenance Agreement Amendment #1 that 
includes the cost for 2024 striping work and the actual costs incurred for the work completed in 2019 
through 2024.  
 
WHEREAS, the new total authorized cost identified in Maintenance Agreement Amendment #1 is 
$103,698.44, or an average of $17,283.07 over each of the 6 years. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington that the City 
Manager is authorized to sign Maintenance Agreement Amendment #1 for WSDOT for the 2019 through 
2024 striping work completed by WSDOT in the city.  
 
INTRODUCED on the 1st day of April 2025 and PASSED by the City Council at its regular meeting held on 
this 15th day of April 2025. 
 
                                                                          __________________________________ 
 Mayor Onisko 
ATTEST: 
   
____________________________  
City Clerk Nault 
 



DOT Form 224-101
Revised 12/2020

Amendment To: 
Maintenance  

Reimbursable Agreement

Applicant or Local Agency

Project Name

Previously Authorized Amount
$

Agreement Number
J

Region Amended Estimated Costs 
$

State Route Mileposts Amendment Number New Total Authorized Amount
$

Reason for Amendment

Recitals
1. The parties hereto entered into original Agreement J-  on the  day 

of  , 20  , and

2. Costs have exceeded the original estimate,

Now, Therefore, pursuant to the terms, conditions and performances contained herein and/or attached hereto, 
and by this reference made a part of this Agreement, it is mutually agreed between the Parties hereto as 
follows:

1. The Parties agree to amend the estimated costs as shown above.

2. All	other	terms	and	conditions	of	the	original	Agreement	shall	remain	in	full	force	and	effect	except	as
modified	by	this	Amendment.

In Witness Whereof, the Parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the date last signed below.

REQUESTING ENTITY
WASHINGTON STATE  

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Signature: Signature: 

By: By: 
Print Name Print Name

Title: Title: 

Date: Date: 









Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F2) 
 
Touch Date: 03/10/2025 
Brief Date:    04/01/2025 
Action Date:  04/15/2025 
 

Department:    Public Works 
 
Presented By: Brent Armstrong, Assistant Public Works Director 
                        

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Gray & Osborne Satellite WWTP 
Reclaimed Water Tank Design 
Contract Amendment No. 5 

 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
  - Resolution No. 1374-0325 
  - G&O Contract Amendment No. 5 
 

    

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 None 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  J.O.H. 

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk DN 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
MZ      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
On August 21, 2018, following a formal solicitation and qualifications-based selection process, Council 
approved a $57,100 Contract with Gray & Osborne, Inc. to complete a pre-design report and initial design 
efforts for replacement of the reclaimed water tank at the Satellite Wastewater Treatment Plant.  

 
In October of that same year, the Squaxin Island Tribe expressed interest in collaborating with the City on a 
grant application through the Department of Ecology. As a result, City staff requested Gray & Osborne to pause 
design efforts in anticipation of the reclaimed water tank being identified as an eligible project. 

 
The Tribe was awarded grant funds, and in March of 2020, the Council adopted Resolution No. 1156-0320, 
approving an Interlocal Agreement (ILA) with the Tribe. The ILA outlined tasks for the City to complete for the 
planning and preliminary design of reclaimed water and wastewater conveyance facilities, with the associated 
costs to be reimbursed by the Tribe.  

 
Following the execution of the ILA, Council adopted Resolution No. 1163-0620 in July 2020, approving 
Amendment Number 1 to the design Contract with Gray & Osborne. This amendment increased the contract 
budget, extended the contract term, and adjusted the scope to align with the tasks defined in the ILA. 

 
In September of 2021, the City was allocated $2,050,000 in the 2021-23 State Capital Budget, utilizing the 
State’s Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Funds through the federal American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), 
administered by the State Department of Commerce (DOC). The Dept. of Commerce retains $50,000 of the 
funds as a fee for administering the grant, leaving the City a net amount of $2.0 million towards the project. 

 
By 2022, Gray & Osborne had completed the work prescribed in Amendment No. 1, allowing the City to close 
out the ILA with the Tribe and shift focus back to the original intent of the Contract – completing the reclaimed 
water tank design. This led to Amendment No. 2, adopted through Resolution No. 1252-1122 on January 3, 
2023, increasing the contract budget and extending the contract term to allow for completion of the remaining 
design efforts. 

 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

In May of 2024, due to the project’s proximity to a wetland, Council adopted Resolution No. 1331-0424, 
approving Contract Amendment No. 3 and increasing the Contract budget for Gray & Osborne to complete a 
Wetland Delineation Report. 

 
Later that same year, City staff proposed Amendment No. 4 to increase the contract budget to allow for a 
geotechnical analysis to be completed, which Council approved through Resolution No. 1364-1124. However, 
the Amendment was never executed, as Gray & Osborne clarified that the analysis was already covered under 
the original contract scope and budget and an amendment was not warranted.  

 
Following the analysis, City staff identified additional and revised project components and requested for Gray & 
Osborne to incorporate them into the final design. City staff requested a proposal from Gray & Osborne to 
outline the scope and associated budget for the additional design elements, as well as for construction 
assistance and management services for the construction phase of the project. This brings forth Contract 
Amendment No. 5 for Council’s consideration, which will add $323,661 to the Contract Budget ($43,661 for 
additional design efforts and $280,000 for construction assistance), and extend the contract term to June 30, 
2026. 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  

 
Contract 
Version Approval Date Change in 

Contract Amt 
New Total 
Contract Scope Change Summary 

Original 09/04/2018 + $57,100 $57,100 Pre-design Report & Preliminary Design 
Amendment 1 07/21/2020 + $38,900 $96,000 Tasks in ILA with Squaxin Island Tribe 
Amendment 2 01/03/2023 + $138,200 $234,200 Complete Design 
Amendment 3 05/21/2024 + $12,000 $246,200 Wetland Report  
Amendment 4 CANCELLED 
Amendment 5 Upon Council 

Approval 
+ $323,661 $569,861 Final Design Elements and Construction Assistance 

 
Nearly all contract expenses have been reimbursed through external funding sources. The Squaxin Island Tribe 
covered the costs associated with the original contract and Amendment No. 1, except for the first two 
consultant invoices totaling $2,831.09, which were paid from the Sewer Utility Fund, as efforts pre-dated the 
term of the Interlocal Agreement (ILA). All costs incurred under Amendments 2 and 3 have been fully 
reimbursed by the Direct Appropriation grant administered by the Department of Commerce. This grant will 
continue to cover 100% of eligible expenses until its remaining balance of approximately $1.83 million is 
exhausted. 

 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information for this project can be obtained through the City Public Works department. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends: “I move to place Resolution No. 1374-0325 on the April 15, 2025 Council meeting action 
agenda for further consideration”. 



RESOLUTION NO. 1374-0325 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 5 WITH GRAY & OSBORNE, INC. FOR DESIGN 

AND CONSTRUCTION ASSISTANCE OF THE SATELLITE WWTP RECLAIMED WATER TANK PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, on August 21, 2018, the City Council approved a contract with Gray and Osborne, Inc. for 
completion of a pre-design report and initial design of a new reclaimed water tank at the Satellite 
Wastewater Treatment Plant; and 

WHEREAS, that following October, design efforts were paused to explore potential funding assistance 
from the Squaxin Island Tribe, leading to an Interlocal Agreement in March 2020 (approved through 
Resolution No. 1156-0320), under which the Tribe reimbursed the City for the planning and preliminary 
design efforts of reclaimed water and wastewater conveyance facilities; and  

WHEREAS, in July of 2020, Council adopted Resolution No. 1163-0620, approving Contract Amendment 
No. 1 with Gray and Osborne, Inc., expanding the scope and budget to better align the project with the 
tasks identified in the Interlocal Agreement; and  

WHEREAS, in September of 2021, the City was allocated $2,050,000 for the project in the 2021-2023 
State Capital Budget, utilizing the State’s Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Funds through the federal 
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), administered by the State Department of Commerce; and 

WHEREAS, with additional funding secured and the work prescribed in the first Contract Amendment 
complete, the City was able to shift Gray & Osborne’s focus back to the original intent of the contract 
through Council’s approval of Contract Amendment No. 2 (authorized by Resolution No. 1252-1122), 
which adjusted the contract scope, budget, and term to allow for design completion; and 

WHEREAS, in May of 2024, Contract Amendment No. 3 (authorized by Resolution No. 1331-0424) 
increased the budget for completion of a required wetland delineation study and report; and 

WHEREAS, Contract Amendment No. 4, approved by Council in December of 2024 (through Resolution 
No. 1364-1124), intended to increase the contract budget for a geotechnical analysis to be completed, 
but the amendment was annulled, as Gray & Osborne confirmed the analysis was already included in 
the scope of the original contract, making an amendment unnecessary; and 

WHEREAS, City staff has identified additional project components desired to be incorporated into the 
project’s final design, and also seeks to retain Gray & Osborne for construction assistance and 
construction management services on the project; and 

WHEREAS, at the City’s request, Gray & Osborne, Inc. has provided a proposal for the desired services, 
bringing forth Contract Amendment No. 5 for Council’s consideration, adding $323,661 to the budget for 
a total Contract amount not to exceed $569,861, and extending the Contract Term to June 30, 2026. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington that the City 
Manager is authorized to sign Contract Amendment No. 5 to the Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design 
Contract with Gray & Osborne, Inc., and any subsequent amendments up to 10% in value of contract 
amendment #5. 
 
INTRODUCED on the 1st day of April 2025 and PASSED by the City Council at its regular meeting held on 
this 15th day of April 2025. 
 

                                                                          __________________________________ 
 Mayor Onisko 
ATTEST: 
   
____________________________  
City Clerk Nault 



   

AMENDMENT NO. 05 

to 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

SATELLITE WWTP RECLAIMED WATER TANK DESIGN SERVICES 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Shelton entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Gray & Osborne, Inc., 

authorized by Council on August 21, 2018 and executed on September 4, 2018, for engineering services for 

the reclaimed water tank at the City’s Satellite Wastewater Treatment Plant; and 

WHEREAS, several contract amendments have been executed to expand the contract scope and authorize 

budget increases; and 

WHEREAS, Contract Amendment No. 4 was previously approved by Council for completion of a geotechnical 

analysis, but the amendment was not executed as it was determined the analysis was already included in the 

original contract scope, making an amendment unnecessary; and 

WHEREAS, City staff has identified additional and revised project components desired to be incorporated into 

the final design, and also seeks to retain Gray & Osborne, Inc. for construction assistance and construction 

management services during the project; and 

WHEREAS, Gray & Osborne, Inc. has provided a proposal outlining the scope and budget for the services 

requested by the City; and 

WHEREAS, additionally, the City has updated its administrative requirements and procedures pertaining to 

invoices and allowable expenditures and intends to incorporate these provisions into all new and existing 

Contracts. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, all provisions of the original agreement, as previously amended through mutual written 

agreement, shall remain in full force and effect, except as expressly modified by this Amendment, as follows: 

1. Section 1 Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant, is hereby amended to include the scope of 

work defined in Exhibit F, attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

2. The first two paragraphs of Section 6 Compensation and Method of Payment are deleted entirely and 

replaced with the following: 

“Total compensation, including all services and reimbursable expenses, shall not exceed a maximum 

of $569,861. The City shall not compensate the Consultant for invoices that exceed the maximum 

amount without a mutually agreed contract amendment executed prior to the date of 

expenses/services incurred. The City reserves the right to disallow invoices that exceed the maximum 

amount and which, in the City’s opinion, do not add value. 

The Consultant shall be paid by the City only for completed Work and for services actually rendered 

and authorized by this Contract, which are described herein. Such payment shall be full compensation 

for Work performed or services rendered, including, but not limited to, all labor, materials, supplies, 

equipment, and incidentals necessary to complete the Work. 

Consultant may receive payment as reimbursement for Eligible Expenses actually incurred. “Eligible 

Expenses” means those types and amounts of expenses either listed in Exhibit G – Reimbursable 

Expenses, or such expenses as are approved for reimbursement by the City’s Contract Manager, in 

writing, prior to the expense being incurred. Expenses not specifically identified in Exhibit G may not 

be reimbursed unless prior written approval was obtained from the City. An expense shall not be 

reimbursed if: 1) the expense is not identified in Exhibit G; 2) the expense would exceed the contract 

Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design
Amendment No. 5

        Page 1 of 10



   

value identified above; or 3) the expense was not approved in writing by the City’s Contract Manager, 

or an authorized representative, prior to the Consultant incurring the expense. 

The Consultant shall submit timely invoices to the City for authorized Work performed, but not more 

often than once every thirty (30) days. Timely is to mean within 60 days following either 1) 

completion of work/tasks for fixed-price contracts, or 2) hours performed for time and materials 

contracts. Year-end invoices shall be submitted no later than January 10th each year. 

The City shall pay the Consultant for services rendered within thirty (30) days of receipt of an 

approved invoice. To obtain payment, the Consultant shall: 1) File its request for payment 

accompanied by evidence satisfactory to the City justifying the request for payment; 2) Follow the 

invoicing guidelines described in Exhibit B – Invoicing Requirements, including the Billing Voucher 

form provided in the exhibit. A completed Billing Voucher must accompany each invoice submitted; 

3) To the extend reimbursement of Eligible Expenses is sought, submit itemization of such expenses 

and all documentation required, as defined in Exhibit G – Reimbursable Expenses. 

All requests for payment, including the required Billing Voucher, Cover Letter Report, and any 

applicable documentation, shall be submitted either via email (preferred method) to 

pw.invoices@sheltonwa.gov, or via postal mail addressed to: City of Shelton Attn: Procurement & 

Contracts Administrator, 525 W Cota Street, Shelton, WA 98584.”  

3. The Contract term identified in Section 8 Duration of Agreement, is hereby amended to June 30, 2026.  

4. Exhibit B - Billing Voucher, shall be replaced in its entirety with new Exhibit B - Invoicing Requirements, 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

5. New Exhibit G – Reimbursable Expenses, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

6. Effective Date: This Amendment shall become effective upon adoption of Resolution No. 1374-0325 by 

the City Council on April 15, 2025. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Amendment as of the effective date set forth above. 

 

 

CITY OF SHELTON GRAY & OSBORNE, INC. 

 

 

 

___________________________________ _________________________________ 

Mark Ziegler, City Manager  Michael B. Johnson, PE, President 

 

  

Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design
Amendment No. 5

        Page 2 of 10



Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design
Amendment No. 5

        Page 3 of 10

EXHIBIT B 

INVOICING REQUIREMENTS 

The City acknowledges that each consul'ng firm has their own accoun'ng so+ware and that, in many cases, it 

may be difficult to change the output or appearance of reports. For City Staff to effec'vely manage projects and 

process invoices, however, certain informa'on is cri'cal. 

The following are guidelines which the City requires all consultants to follow when preparing invoices for City of 

Shelton projects.  

For On-Call Contracts, the invoicing requirements in Exhibit E – On-Call Supplementary Condi�ons, shall be followed. 

1. Timing: Due to poten'al audit issues, the City cannot pay for work done prior to the date listed as the 

“effec've date” noted at the top of the executed Professional or Personal Services Agreement (PSA). Services 

shall be invoiced for within sixty (60) days of performance but not more frequently than every thirty (30) 

days. 

2. Individual Invoicing: In the case of mul'ple contracts/projects with the City of Shelton, separate invoices 

shall be submi>ed per Contract. 

3. Cover Le�er Report: A cover le>er summarizing the work done on the project during the period of the 

invoice, signed by the project manager, must accompany each invoice submi>ed. Please iden'fy the period 

covered by the invoice in the heading. The level of detail in the report should be commensurate with the 

quan'ty of work occurring during the billing period. Even for the most complex projects, however, a short 

paragraph for each major task should be sufficient. 

4. Billing Voucher: A Billing Voucher (page 2, a>ached to this Exhibit) must be completed and accompany each 

invoice submi>ed; a digital pdf or fillable Word version of the document can be emailed upon request. The 

Billing Voucher summarizes the following:  

a. Submi>al Number - the sequen'al number of invoices submi>ed to date, including the current invoice. 

b. Consultant Informa'on – Name, Mailing Address, Phone Number 

c. Contract Informa'on – Title of the Contract/Project, and Contract Expira'on Date. 

d. Repor'ng Period - shall be a range between two specific dates for which the invoice covers, such as 

January 1, 2023 – January 30, 2023. 

e. Invoice Number - a unique number assigned to each invoice by the Consul'ng Firm in order to 

dis'nguish one invoice submission from another. 

f. Indicates whether the invoice submi>al is the final billing for the Contract. 

g. Budget Summary – shows the total Contract Budget, Previous Payments, Current Request, Total 

Requested to Date, and Balance Remaining. 

5. Task Breakout: Each invoice should list the amount being billed by tasks as shown in the Scope of Work. 

Under each task, include a list of all people that have worked on the project during the invoice period by 

name, job �tle, and billing rate; A lis'ng by job 'tle only is not acceptable. 

6. Time Sheet Detail: Timesheet detail with comments (Diary Logs) are required for all 'me charged. 

7. Backup: The City requires backup for all reimbursable expenses, and the guidelines outlined in Exhibit G - 

Reimbursable Expenses, must be followed. 

8. Subconsultants: All requirements asked of the prime consultant must be followed by sub-consultants as 

well, including reimbursable expenses and Diary Logs. 

9. Rates: It is the Consultant’s responsibility to verify that rates included on the invoice are consistent with the 

rates approved by the City, as iden'fied in the executed Contract and any Contract Amendments. 

10. Invoice Submi�al: The invoice package shall be submi>ed to PW.Invoices@SheltonWA.gov, or via postal mail 

or courier addressed to: City of Shelton A>n: Procurement & Contracts Administrator, 525 W Cota Street, 

Shelton, WA 98584. 



 

 

 

Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design
Amendment No. 5

        Page 4 of 10



EXHIBIT F, PART 1 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

CITY OF SHELTON 

ADDITIONAL DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION ASSISTANCE SERVICES FOR 

RECLAIMED WATER TANK PROJECT 

 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

 

The City Reclaimed Water Tank Project includes the following major items of 

construction: 

 

1. Complete required erosion control, clearing, grubbing, excavation, 

grading, backfill, and compaction.   

 

2.  Complete demolition of the existing structures on site.  

 

3.  Furnish and install 500,000 Gallon Glass Lined Bolted Steel Reservoir 

and Foundation. 

 

4.  Furnish and install piping, valves and appurtenances.  

 

5.  Furnish and install modification to the existing reclaimed water basin.  

 

6.  Furnish and install modification to the existing in-plant drain pump 

station.  

 

7.  Furnish and install fencing.  

 

8.  Provide testing, commissioning, and training as specified.  

 

9.  Furnish and install all required electrical, telemetry, and instrumentation.  

 

10.  Furnish restore all surfaces disturbed by construction activities. 

 

During the design phase, the City and Gray & Osborne identified additional and revised 

project components to be included in the Project.  The additional engineering work is 

primarily associated with incorporation of the project components into the bid 

documents. 

 

The contract time for the project is a total of 240 working days to substantial completion, 

or approximately 48 weeks.  This time includes allowances for procurement of the 

bolted steel tank materials.  The City has requested assistance for the construction phase 

of the project. 

 

Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design
Amendment No. 5

        Page 5 of 10

G&O #18273.00 

Page 1 of  

Exhibit F
5



 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

The proposed engineering services include the following tasks: 

 

Task 1 – Additional Design Elements 

 

A. Revise control valve selection and features to maximize flexibility in 

pumping to sprayfield and returning flow to existing reclaimed water 

basin. Provide concrete vaults with drains to house control valves and 

related electrical and mechanical appurtenances.. 

 

B. Design modifications to the existing in-plant drain pump station. 

 

C. Add flex-tend fittings within concrete vaults for seismic isolation both the 

inlet and outlet of the reclaimed water tank. 

 

D. Prepare revised Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimate associated with 

additional design elements. 

 

Task 2 – Electrical & Controls 

 

A. Develop control narrative and Process and Instrumentation Diagram 

(P&ID) information to allow City Integrator to prepare modifications to 

existing City System Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system. 

 

B. Develop emergency and alarm conditions associated filling and draining 

the reclaimed water tank and effects on the existing reclaimed water basin, 

existing reclaimed water pump station, and existing in-plant drain pump 

station.  

 

C. Design electrical connections for instrumentation within new control valve 

vaults and for integration into existing electrical panels and existing motor 

control center (MCC). 

 

Task 3 – Pre-Construction Services 

 

A. Prepare Conformed Documents (Plans and Specifications) with 

incorporation of the addenda issued during the bid phase. 

 

B. Pre-Construction Meeting: Coordinate and conduct a preconstruction 

conference to establish administrative procedures for the project. 

 

Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design
Amendment No. 5

        Page 6 of 10

G&O #18273.00 

Page 2 of  

Exhibit F

5



Task 4 – Construction Contract Administration 

 

A. Construction Schedule: Review and comment on the contractor's 

construction schedule. Monitor the contractor's progress in relation to the 

schedule.  Keep the parties advised on the time limit as it relates to the 

performance schedule. 

 

B. Construction Meetings: Coordinate and conduct construction meetings 

over duration of construction phase.  Major meeting items to include 

schedule status, construction progress, construction issues, change order 

proposals, submittals, and pay estimates.  Construction meetings will be 

held weekly. 

 

C. Monthly Progress Estimates: Review contractor's monthly progress 

payment requests. 

 

D. Project Closeout: Assist the City in obtaining from the contractor bonds, 

warranties, and as-built drawings.  Prepare record drawings. 

 

E. Per the Project Specifications, Construction Survey is required to be 

completed by the contractor. Construction survey by Gray & Osborne will 

consist of establishing control and completing as-built survey for 

preparation of record drawings. 
 

Task 5 – Office Engineering 

 

A. Review Submittals: Review material and non-material submittals for 

compliance with design intent and general conformity to the Contract 

drawings and specifications. 

 

B. Review "Or Equal" Products: Review proposals from the contractor to 

substitute an "or equal" product for a specified product based on design 

intent and general conformity to the Contract drawings and specifications. 

 

C. Clarify Design Intent: Respond to the contractor's questions and provide 

interpretation of the Contract specifications and drawings, which address 

and clarify design intent. Prepare supplementary sketches to clarify 

conditions. Maintain records of telephone meetings concerning design 

intent. 

 

D. Evaluate Change Orders: Estimate the added or reduced cost of changes 

during construction to be used in negotiation of Contract change orders.  

Provide engineering design for change orders as directed by the City.  

Evaluate the impact of change orders on the construction schedule and 

recommend eligible time extensions. 

Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design
Amendment No. 5

        Page 7 of 10

G&O #18273.00 

Page 3 of 

Exhibit F
5



 

E. Provide office support for field activities. 

 

Task 6 – Construction Monitoring 

 

A. Provide inspection for the duration of the project. The resident inspector 

will keep track of daily quantities, maintain daily reports, review and 

recommend payment request, prepare and maintain field set of record 

drawings, provide general paperwork, and communicate directly to the 

project manager.  The fee proposal assumes 120 working days of full-time 

inspection. 

 

B. Conduct Final Inspections: Conduct substantial completion inspections, 

punchlists, review compliance and recommend acceptance by the City. 

 

 

BUDGET 

 

Based on the Scope of Work described above, the total estimated cost for completing the 

Engineering Services tasks is $323,661, as shown in the attached Exhibit F Part 2. 

 

Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design
Amendment No. 5

        Page 8 of 10

G&O #18273.00 

Page 4 of  

Exhibit F
5



P
r
in

c
ip

a
l/

  

P
r
o
je

c
t 

M
a

n
a
g
e
r
 

H
o
u

r
s

P
r
o
je

c
t 

E
n

g
in

e
e
r
 

H
o
u

r
s

C
iv

il
 

E
n

g
in

e
e
r
 

H
o
u

r
s

E
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 

E
n

g
in

e
e
r
 

H
o
u

r
s

A
u

to
C

A
D

 

T
e
c
h

n
ic

ia
n

  
  

  

H
o
u

r
s

In
sp

e
c
to

r
  

  
  

H
o
u

r
s

P
r
o
f.

 L
a
n

d
 

S
u

r
v

e
y

o
r
 

H
o
u

r
s

S
u

r
v

e
y

 

T
e
c
h

n
ic

ia
n

 

H
o
u

r
s

S
u

r
v

e
y

 

C
r
e
w

  
 

H
o
u

r
s

1
.

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 D

es
ig

n
 E

le
m

en
ts

1
4
0

1
9

3
7

2
.

E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 

&
 C

o
n

tr
o
ls

1
3
3

1
2
4

1
7

3
.

P
re

-C
o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 S

er
v
ic

es
4

8
8

8
8

4
.

C
o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

4
8

4
0

2
4

2
4

5
.

O
ff

ic
e 

E
n

g
in

ee
ri

n
g

4
0

9
6

1
2
0

4
8

4
8

6
.

C
o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 M

o
n

it
o
ri

n
g

1
6

2
4

2
4

2
4

9
6
0

8
1
2

3
0

1
1
0

2
4
1

1
9
5

1
9
6

1
3
4

9
6
8

8
1
2

3
0

$
2
4
0

$
1
9
0

$
1
3
5

$
1
6
3

$
1
2
1

$
1
6
6

$
2
0
4

$
1
8
0

$
2
7
5

$
2

6
,4

0
0

$
4
5
,7

9
0

$
2
6
,3

2
5

$
3
1
,9

4
8

$
1
6
,2

1
4

$
1
6
0
,6

8
8

$
1
,6

3
2

$
2
,1

6
0

$
8
,2

5
0

T
o
ta

l 
F

u
ll

y
 B

u
rd

en
ed

 L
ab

o
r 

C
o
st

:
3
1
9
,4

0
7

$
  
  

 

D
ir

ec
t 

N
o
n

-S
al

ar
y
 C

o
st

:

M
il

ea
g
e 

&
 E

x
p
en

se
s 

(M
il

ea
g
e 

@
 c

u
rr

en
t 

IR
S

 r
at

e)
4
,2

5
4

$
  
  
  
  

 

T
O

T
A

L
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

D
 C

O
S

T
:

3
2
3
,6

6
1

$
  
  

 

*E
st

im
at

ed
 H

o
u

rl
y
 R

at
es

:

D
ir

ec
t 

L
ab

o
r 

C
o
st

A
ct

u
al

 l
ab

o
r 

co
st

 w
il

l 
b

e 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 e
ac

h
 e

m
p

lo
y
ee

's
 a

ct
u

al
 r

at
e.

  
E

st
im

at
ed

 r
at

es
 a

re
 f

o
r 

d
et

er
m

in
in

g
 t

o
ta

l 
es

ti
m

at
ed

 c
o
st

 o
n

ly
. 

 F
u

ll
y
 b

u
rd

en
ed

 b
il

li
n

g
 r

at
es

 i
n

cl
u

d
e 

d
ir

ec
t 

sa
la

ry
 c

o
st

, 
o
v
er

h
ea

d
, 

an
d

 p
ro

fi
t.

E
X

H
IB

IT
 F

 P
A

R
T

 2

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

S
C

O
P

E
 A

N
D

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
D

 C
O

S
T

C
it

y
 o

f 
S

h
e
lt

o
n

 -
 A

d
d
it

io
n

a
l 

D
e
si

g
n

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

st
ru

c
ti

o
n

 A
ss

is
ta

n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

fo
r 

R
e
c
la

im
e
d
 W

a
te

r 
T

a
n

k

T
a

sk
s

H
o
u

r 
E

st
im

at
e:

Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design
Amendment No. 5

        Page 9 of 10

G
&

O
 #

1
8

2
8

7
.0

0
P

ag
e 

 o
f 

5
5

P
ag

e 
4
 o

f

E
xh

ib
it 

F



 

Exhibit G – Reimbursable Expenses 
 

Reimbursable expenses for Consultants/Contractors and Sub-Consultants/Sub-Contractors working for the City of Shelton shall follow the 

guidelines outlined below, unless otherwise specified in the Agreement. All reimbursable expenses will be billed at the actual direct cost, 

unless otherwise indicated below. 
  

Expense Type Reimbursement Policies 
Documentation 

Required 

Pre- Approval 

Required?* 

Hotel 

Lodging reimbursement is limited to the current GSA per-diem 

daily lodging rate allowance for Mason County plus tax 

(https://www.gsa.gov/travel-resources). The City does not 

reimburse for in-room purchases, laundry, or any other 

incidentals. The City will not reimburse extra booking fees or 

related charges. 

Itemized Receipt 

from check out – 

Booking receipts 

will not be 

accepted 

Yes 

Airfare 

Based on the most economical flights with reasonable routing. 

Business class and first class are not reimbursable. 

Baggage fees are limited to one bag per person.  

Receipt Yes 

Airport Shuttle/ 

Taxi/Rideshare 
Actual expense, may include a customary gratuity. Receipt 

Automatic when 

airfare approved 

Rental Car 
Reimbursement for rental cars will be for a standard size car or 

smaller and reimbursed for the actual expense. 
Receipt Yes 

Ferry Service 

Only if required for travel between the local office and the City 

office/site. If other modes & routes are available, the cheaper 

route and mode shall be utilized. 

Receipt No 

Privately-Owned 

or Company Car 

Mileage shall be calculated from the actual local office or office 

identified below and reimbursed at the IRS allowable rate for the 

current year.  

Printed Map w/ 

Mileage 
No 

Zipcar/Similar 

Service 

The City will reimburse contractual car rental fees to the extent 

they do not exceed the comparable mileage rate reimbursement. 

Receipt & Printed 

Map 
No 

Tolls 

Only if required for travel between the local office and the City 

office/site. If other non-toll routes are possible, the cheapest route 

shall be utilized. 

Good to Go or 

other statement 
No 

Meals 

Meal reimbursement is limited to the current GSA per-diem meal 

allowance, and only allowed when consultant travels overnight or 

at least 150 miles per one-way trip.  https://www.gsa.gov/travel-

resources 

Itemized Receipt - 

Identify Person(s), 

Meal Type, and 

Dates of Travel 

Yes 

Courier or Parcel 

Services 

Reimbursable only if required to fulfill a request of the City. Does 

not include routine correspondence. 
Receipt No 

Printing, copying 

Reimbursement will be allowed for documents that are to be 

provided to the owner or provided to an outside entity on behalf 

of the owner, only. Prints/copies of documents used by the 

Consultant/Contractor to perform normal services and not 

provided to the City are not reimbursable. 

Receipt No 

Sub-Consultants/ 

Sub-Contractors 

Up to 10% markup allowed unless grant/funding guidelines 

prohibit. All subs are subject to these reimbursement guidelines. 

Sub-Consultants hired to perform basic services required by the 

Contract are not eligible for reimbursement. 

Sub-Invoices Yes 

* Pre-approval means an approval in writing from the Contract Manager prior to the cost(s) being incurred.  Documentation of approval 

shall be included with the invoice. 

 

Office Address Mileage will be calculated from:         

              

Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design
Amendment No. 5

        Page 10 of 10

2102 Carriage Drive SW

Olympia, WA 98502



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F3) 

Touch Date:   11/24/2024  
Brief Date:     04/01/2025   
Action Date:   04/15/2025   

Department: Public Works 
   
Presented By: Aaron Nix, Assistant Public Works Director 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Transpo Group Agreement No. 24-
007-PSA for Systemic Ped. Safety & 
OHN Improvement Design Services 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
- RFQ #24-007 and Pre-Submittal Q&A 
- Evaluation Scoring Matrix 
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head    J.O.H. 

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk DN     

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
MZ      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
In 2022, the City applied for federal funding through the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) to 
improve pedestrian safety, as outlined in its Local Road Safety Plan. Of the numerous locations identified for 
improvement, six were included in the application, and four ultimately were selected for funding: 1) Olympic 
Hwy North and I Street intersection improvements; 2) Mid-Block crossing relocation at Olympic Hwy South and 
Bellevue Ave; 3) Rapid Flashing Beacons at West Railroad Ave. and 3rd Street; and 4) Traffic signal evaluation 
and options assessment at West Railroad Ave. and 7th Street. 
In 2023, the City also applied for and secured funding from the Transportation Improvement Board (TIB) to 
repair the deteriorating roadway on Olympic Highway North, between C Street and Wallace Kneeland Blvd. 
One of the HSIP-funded locations overlaps with this corridor, requiring all project locations/limits to follow 
federal guidelines and be combined under a single contract. 
Throughout October 2024, the attached Request for Qualifications (RFQ) was advertised to solicit qualifications 
from engineering firms interested in preparing design and construction bid-ready documents. Four firms 
submitted Statements of Qualifications in response to the RFQ, all of which were evaluated by a panel of city 
staff based on the criteria identified in the RFQ. The top three highest scoring firms advanced to the interview 
phase and were further evaluated by a panel of city staff and WSDOT Local Programs personnel. 
The attached scoring matrix summarized the evaluation results, with Transpo Group scoring the highest and 
ranking as the most qualified firm for the project. City staff have been working with Transpo Group to finalize 
the contract scope, a process requiring additional time due to the complexity of phasing the combined projects 
and ensuring all federal funding requirements are met. Once the scope and budget are mutually agreed upon, a 
WSDOT Standard Consultant Agreement will be prepared and presented to the Council, which is anticipated to 
be completed prior to the next Council Meeting. 

  
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
The City has the option to remove the I Street intersection improvements from the Olympic Hwy North Project. 
This separation would allow the Olympic Hwy North corridor improvements to proceed without the stringent 
federal guidelines and complex administrative requirements that accompany federal transportation funding. 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

However, TIB has informed the City that this approach would require relinquishing the awarded funds and 
reapplying during the next funding cycle, with no guarantee of being awarded funds. Given the urgent need for 
repairs, staff does not recommend this option, as further delays may lead to even further pavement degradation 
and unsafe driving conditions for those traveling Olympic Hwy North. 
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
TIB will cover 90% of eligible expenses, up to $3,688,752 for the Olympic Highway North Project, including 
$356,976 allocated for design. 
 
The City was awarded $1,295,000 for the Systemic Pedestrian Safety Improvements, with $155,000 
designated for design. The project is eligible for 100% funding (up to the awarded amount) if design is 
completed, and a construction contractor is under contract by April 30, 2026. Failure to meet this deadline will 
result in the City having to return the funds allocated for construction.  
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Any additional information can be obtained from the Public Works Department.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends: “I move to forward this agenda item and the addition of a resolution and proposed contract 
to the April 15, 2025 action agenda for further consideration”.  



 

 

 
 

 

 

  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 

Systemic Ped. Safety & Olympic Hwy North Improvements 

Design Services  

RFQ: 24-007 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

RFQ Due Date: November 12, 2024 by 1:00 p.m. 

RFQ Submi)al: City of Shelton, A$n: Brooke Kilts 

525 W Cota Street | Shelton, WA 98584 

City of Shelton 



 

 

CITY OF SHELTON 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 

CONTRACT NAME: Systemic Ped. Safety & Olympic Hwy North Improvements Design Services 

CONTRACT NO.:  24-007-PSA 

RESPONSES DUE: November 12, 2024 by 1:00 PM 
 

Public no<ce is hereby given that the City of Shelton has issued a Request for Qualifica<ons for Design 

Engineering services for the Systemic Pedestrian Safety and Olympic Highway North Improvements 

Project, with responses due no later than the date and <me given above. 

The work to be performed by the consultant consists of engineering design and PS&E development to 

construct roadway, traffic signal, and intersec<on improvements across mul<ple loca<ons in Shelton, 

Washington. These projects are funded by both Federal and State sources and are therefore subject to 

Federal EEO requirements and the Washington State Department of Transporta<on’s Local Agency 

Guidelines (LAG). A mandatory 13% DBE Goal was ini1ally assigned by WSDOT for this design contract 

but is currently under addi1onal review and may be revised prior to contract award. 

The proposed improvements include roadway re-surfacing and striping reconfigura<on on Olympic Hwy 

North from C Street to Wallace Kneeland Blvd, as well as curb extensions, ADA-compliant curb ramps, 

Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons (RRFB’s), signage, high visibility crosswalk markings, and other 

pedestrian and related improvements on Olympic Hwy North and three other loca<ons throughout the 

City. An<cipated services include, but are not limited to, field survey and mapping, engineering design, 

traffic and signal analysis, geotechnical support, environmental permiFng support, public outreach and 

engagement support, and other elements necessary to develop construc<on-ready contract documents 

(plans, specifica<ons, and es<mates). Although these projects u<lize different funding sources and cover 

mul<ple loca<ons, the City’s intent for this design is to consolidate the projects into a single construc<on 

contract, with dis<nct schedules for each project loca<on. The City of Shelton reserves the right to retain 

the services of the successful firm for any associated subsequent phases (R/W, CN).  

Selec<on of firms will be based on the following criteria: 

• Qualifica<ons and experience of the proposed firms 

• Qualifica<ons and experience of the project manager and key team members with WSDOT LAG 

and projects u<lizing mul<ple funding sources 

• Composi<on, capacity, and availability of the key team members 

• Approach to the project to assure successful delivery of scope, schedule, budget and quality of 

the project 

• Communica<on skills 

Complete details and all submi$al requirements are available on the City of Shelton’s website under RFP 

and Bid Opportuni<es at www.sheltonwa.gov. 

The City of Shelton in accordance with Sec<on 504 of the Rehabilita<ons Act (Sec<on 504) and the 

Americans with Disabili<es Act (ADA), commits to nondiscrimina<on on the basis of disability, in all of its 

programs and ac<vi<es. This material can be made available in an alternate format by emailing 

leandra.sharp@sheltonwa.gov or by calling (360)432-5112. 

The City of Shelton, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 

252, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regula<ons, hereby no<fies all bidders that it will 

affirma<vely ensure that any contract entered into pursuant to this adver<sement, disadvantaged 

business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to this invita<on 

and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or na<onal origin in considera<on for 

an award. 

Published: Sea$le Daily Journal of Commerce 10/15/24, 10/22/24, and 10/29/24 

Posted:  City of Shelton Website – www.sheltonwa.gov and OMWBE – www.omwbe.wa.gov   



 

P a g e  1 | 15 

CITY OF SHELTON 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
Systemic Ped. Safety & Olympic Highway North (OHN) Improvements 

Design Services 

 

RFQ: 24-007 
 

The following content is provided in this Request for Qualifica<ons (RFQ) to assist statement prepara<on. 

 

SECTION 1.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

1.01 Purpose and Background 

1.02 Schedule 

1.03 RFQ Inquiries and Communica<ons 

1.04 Contract Term 

1.05 Public Records 

1.06 Recycled Products 

1.07 Confirma<on of Business Organiza<on 

1.08 Federal, State, and Local Requirements 
 

SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

2.01 General 

2.02 Project Management 

2.03 Project Defini<on & Concept Development  

2.04 Field Survey and Mapping 

2.05 Environmental and PermiFng 

2.06 Public Par<cipa<on and Communica<ons 

2.07 Real Estate Services 

2.08 Design Progress  

2.09 Bidding Assistance Services 
 

SECTION 3. SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS, EVALUATION, AND AWARD 

3.01 Submi$al Requirements  

3.02 Statement Contents 

3.03 Statement Withdrawal 

3.04 Rejec<on or Acceptance of Statements 

3.05 Incurred Costs 

3.06 Evalua<on Criteria 

3.07 Evalua<on and Award Process 
 

SECTION 4. ATTACHMENTS 

 A Confirma<on of Business Organiza<on 

 B Project Loca<ons 

 C Design Concepts 



SYSTEMIC PED. SAFETY & OLYMPIC HWY NORTH IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN SERVICES 

RFQ 24-007 

P a g e  2 | 15 

SECTION 1.  GENERAL INFORMATION: 
1.01 Purpose and Background 

In 2022, the City applied for federal funding through the Highway Safety Improvement Program 

(HSIP) to improve pedestrian safety, as outlined in its Local Road Safety Plan. Of the numerous 

loca<ons iden<fied for improvement, six were included in the applica<on, and four ul<mately 

received funding. 

In 2023, the City also applied for and was awarded funding from the Transporta<on Improvement 

Board (TIB) to repair the rapidly deteriora<ng roadway on Olympic Highway North, between C 

Street and Wallace Kneeland Blvd. 

One of the HSIP-funded loca<ons overlaps with the Olympic Hwy North corridor project, requiring 

all projects to follow federal funding guidelines and be combined under a single construc<on 

contract. The selected consultant’s design must incorporate the elements outlined in each 

respec<ve funding agreement, which includes: 

Systemic Pedestrian Safety Improvements (Federal HSIP): 

1. Olympic Highway North and I Street – Install rectangular rapid flashing beacons, curb 

extensions, street ligh<ng, high visibility crosswalk markings, signing, pavement markings, 

and curb ramps as needed. 

2. Olympic Highway South and Bellevue Ave. – Relocate crosswalk, install rectangular rapid 

flashing beacons, high visibility crosswalk markings, signing, pavement markings, and curb 

ramps as needed. Extend sidewalk from proposed crosswalk on Bellevue Ave. (MP 1.60) to 

Arcadia Ave (MP 1.49). 

3. West Railroad Ave. and 3rd Street – Install rectangular rapid flashing beacons and curb ramps 

as needed. 

4. West Railroad Ave. and 7th Street – Evaluate exis<ng traffic signal at West Railroad Avenue 

and 7th Street intersec<on to assess changing permi$ed leR-turn phasing to protected or 

protected/permi$ed leR-turn phasing. 

Olympic Hwy North, C Street to Wallace Kneeland Blvd. (TIB Urban Arterial Program): 

• Re-pave the roadway (scope to be determined during the design phase, either drive lanes 

only or full grind and overlay). 

• Install curb extensions with enhanced illumina<on, ADA-compliant curb ramps with 

detectable warning strips, Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons with advanced signage, 

and reconfigure pavement striping/markings to create bike lanes. 

Addi<onally, the City is seeking approval for the applica<on of WA Legislature-approved funds for 

intersec<on improvements (channeliza<on and signaliza<on) at the intersec<on of Olympic 

Highway North and Wallace Kneeland Boulevard.  Should approval be obtained, these 

improvements may be added to the design contract by amendment. 

1.02 Schedule 

Event Date  

RFQ Release October 15, 2024 

Inquiries Deadline October 31, 2024 by 5:00 pm 

Responses to Inquiries Posted November 5, 2024 by 5:00 pm 

SOQ Submi$al Due November 12, 2024 by 1:00 pm 

No<fica<on of Shortlist (tenta<ve) *November 21, 2024 

Interview of Short-Listed Consultants (as needed 

and determined by the city) 

*December 10, 2024 

Council Award *January 21, 2025 

*These dates are approximate and subject to change 



SYSTEMIC PED. SAFETY & OLYMPIC HWY NORTH IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN SERVICES 

RFQ 24-007 

P a g e  3 | 15 

1.03 RFQ Inquiries and Communica1ons 

Interested par<es must direct all communica<ons regarding this RFQ to Procurement & Contracts 

Administrator, Brooke Kilts, via email to brooke.kilts@sheltonwa.gov. In your email subject line, 

reference Engineering Design Services, Olympic Highway North (OHN) Improvements RFQ 2024-

007’. Response to inquiries cannot be guaranteed unless received by email prior to the inquiry’s 

deadline noted in the schedule. All wri$en answers to ques<ons received prior to the deadline 

will be posted to the City of Shelton website located at: 

h$ps://www.sheltonwa.gov/business_development/rfp and_bid_opportuni<es.php. 

If applicable, addenda will be issued prior to the bid due date.  The City reserves the 

discre<on to group similar ques<ons to provide a single answer or not to respond when 

the requested informa<on is confiden<al. 

Unauthorized contact regarding the RFQ with other City staff may result in disqualifica<on.  Any 

oral communica<on will be considered unofficial and non-binding on the city. 

1.04 Contract Term 

An ini<al Contract Term of eighteen (18) months will be offered, with a possible extension for 

construc<on management support based on the construc<on schedule. 

1.05 Public Records 

Any material submi$ed shall become the property of the City and shall not be returned. 

During the evalua<on of statements and selec<on of the Consultant, the statements 

shall be confiden<al. ARer the selec<on process has been completed, the statements 

shall be open to public inspec<on. Statements should not contain any informa<on that 

the proposers do not wish to become public. If it is necessary to submit confiden<al 

informa<on in order to comply with the terms and condi<ons of this RFQ, each page 

containing confiden<al informa<on should be clearly marked, “NOT FOR PUBLIC 

DISCLOSURE CONFIDENTIAL TRADE SECRETS”. The City accepts no liability for the 

inadvertent or unavoidable release of any confiden<al informa<on submi$ed, and 

claims arising out of any public record request for such informa<on shall be at the 

proposer’s expense. 

1.06 Recycled Products Statement 

Consultants shall use recyclable products to the maximum extent economically feasible in the 

prepara<on of the Statement, and the selected Consultant shall con<nue the same prac<ce in the 

performance of the contract work. 

1.07 Confirma1on of Business Organiza1on 

The Consultant shall iden<fy the business organiza<on under which it operates (form provided in 

RFQ as A$achment A).  Partnerships and joint ventures will list each member’s name, address, 

business license number, tax ID number, telephone number, and email address on a separate 

sheet of paper a$ached to the proposal. This page will not be included in your total page count. 

Failure to complete and include this form in your submi$al may be considered non-responsive. 

1.08 Federal, State, and Local Requirements 

The selected Consultant shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, regula<ons, execu<ve 

orders, and ordinances applicable to the work under this contract. In addi<on, the Consultant 

agrees to comply with: 

a. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.  The City of Shelton, in accordance with the 

provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat.252,42 U.S. C. 2000d to 2000-

d-4) and the Regula<ons, hereby no<fies all bidders that will affirma<vely ensure that any 

contract entered into pursuant to this adver<sement , disadvantaged business 

enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids/qualifica<ons in 



SYSTEMIC PED. SAFETY & OLYMPIC HWY NORTH IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN SERVICES 

RFQ 24-007 

P a g e  4 | 15 

response to this invita<on and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, 

color, or na<onal origin in considera<on for an award. 

b. Sec<on V of the Rehabilita<on Act of 1973. 

c. The American with Disabili<es Act of 1990 

d. All regula<ons and administra<ve rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; and 

e. All other applicable requirements of Federal and State civil rights and rehabilita<on 

statures, rules, and regula<ons. 

f. Condi<ons iden<fied in grant agreements for funding of the design and construc<on 

contracts and projects. 

A mandatory minimum goal of 13% (thirteen percent) was ini1ally established by WSDOT for 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) for the design contract, but is subject to revision 

prior to award.   

The City of Shelton is an Equal Opportunity Employer and does not discriminate against any 

person, firm partnership, or organiza<on as it pertains to race, color, religion, sex, age, na<onal 

origin, marital status, sexual orienta<on, medical condi<on, physical handicap, or disability.  Any 

person, firm, partnership, or organiza<on contrac<ng with or doing business with the City shall be 

in conformity with the City’s policy on non-discrimina<on. 

SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
2.01 General 

The selected Consultant will be required to have extensive knowledge and proficient experience 

of the process, guidelines, and requirements of designing and managing projects u<lizing federal 

transporta<on funds, following the LAG Manual, and working with WSDOT Local Programs. 

The selected Consultant shall deliver the following tasks, at a minimum, to successfully design and 

bid a single construc<on contract by January of 2026. This Scope is intended only to convey the 

general requirements for the project.  The selected consultant will be required to submit a draR 

scope of work within seven (7) working days post no<fica<on of selec<on.  The city will then work 

with the selected consultant to further define the scope of work, and a level of effort and budget 

will be nego<ated based on the agreed upon Scope of Services. The selected consultant will be 

expected to enter into a Local Agency Standard A&E Professional Services Agreement with the 

established maximum contract amount. The city may authorize some or all of the work elements 

on a task basis. All ac<vi<es and deliverables are to be performed in compliance with the 

requirements of the WSDOT Local Agency Guidelines (LAG) Manual, and the City of Shelton. 

2.02 Project Management 

This task consists of all du<es, elements, and func<ons necessary to successfully manage project 

delivery in terms of scope, schedule, budget, and quality assurance.  Weekly communica<ons, 

and bi-weekly mee<ngs with the City Project Manager are an<cipated.  A Project Management 

Plan (PMP) is to be prepared, submi$ed, and managed.  The PMP should include sec<ons rela<ve 

to scope, schedule, and budget, as well as a Quality Management Plan (QMP), Communica<ons 

Plan (internal and external), approach to permiFng requirements and environmental regulatory 

compliance. 

The Consultant will be required to document and publish mee<ng agendas, notes, and ac<on 

plans throughout the project.   

This task may also include strategic planning ac<vi<es, progress repor<ng, monthly invoicing, 

contract management, and Sub-consultant management for the dura<on of the project.  

 

 



SYSTEMIC PED. SAFETY & OLYMPIC HWY NORTH IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN SERVICES 

RFQ 24-007 

P a g e  5 | 15 

2.03 Project Defini1on & Concept Development 

This task will consist of a project kick-off mee<ng with the City and Consultant project team to 

present and confirm goals and objec<ves, scope and schedule, as well as iden<fy an<cipated 

data, and other requirements and informa<on necessary for the project.   

All design efforts will conform with the WSDOT Design Manual (latest edi<on), WSDOT LAG 

Manual (latest edi<on), APWA, and standards of the City of Shelton.  The Consultant will develop 

a conceptual plan on a scalable printed roll plot, based on available or newly obtained field survey 

and mapping.  The an<cipated 10 to 15% (ten to fiReen percent) progress level of effort concept 

will be reviewed with the City at a design workshop, prior to proceeding to contract plans 

prepara<on.  The effort will include a preliminary cost es<mate that addresses not only 

construc<on costs, but design and construc<on engineering, project administra<on, real estate 

requirements, environmental requirements, etc. 

The Consultant will provide construc<on sequencing and ini<al traffic control phasing strategies 

as part of the effort. 

The Consultant will update the plan for use within the community engagement process. 

2.04 Field Survey and Mapping 

The Consultant will collect available data and records from the city.  A u<li<es inventory will be 

prepared and maintained.  The Consultant will then provide accurate field mapping based on 

aerial survey to the appropriate level of detail for all topographic, u<lity, and structural features.  

Alterna<ve approaches to achieve this may be proposed.  All subsurface u<li<es poten<ally 

impacted by the project will be field located and verified.  Public and private u<li<es will be 

consulted in order to verify the accuracy by the iden<fied u<li<es.  Any debris filled drainage 

structures will be iden<fied for cleaning by City Maintenance.  The iden<fica<on and disclosure of 

u<lity easements and rights of way will also be determined by the Consultant. 

2.05 Environmental and PermiEng 

The Consultant will be tasked to iden<fy all known or poten<al environmental requirements as 

necessary to support NEPA/SEPA clearance under the LAG process.  At a minimum this task will 

include a Cultural Resources Assessment (CRA) as required by applicable state and federal laws.  

The Consultant will determine the project’s eligibility or exemp<on under NEPA/SEPA. 

The Consultant will prepare a “permit log” which will iden<fy all federal, state and local permits 

required for the design and construc<on of the project.  Responsibili<es for obtaining permits will 

be iden<fied.  The Consultant will be tasked with obtaining the required permits necessary for 

design and environmental clearance. 

2.06 Public Par1cipa1on and Communica1ons 

The Consultant will recommend and conduct a community engagement and communica<ons plan 

in partnership with the City Communica<ons Manager and the Public Works Project Manager.  At 

a minimum the effort should include two open house style mee<ngs at the Community Civic 

Center.  In addi<on, the Consultant will support public no<ces and website development by 

providing appropriate graphics.  

2.07  Real Estate Services 

The City does not maintain right of way and/or real estate services for its projects.  As such, the 

Consultant will be required to validate exis<ng and proposed rights of way to an appropriate level 

of accuracy, iden<fy poten<al needs for acquisi<on, temporary and/or permanent easements.  A 

preliminary budget for right of way requirements will be prepared by the Consultant.  The 

Consultant will also include a process flow chart with schedule for poten<al right of way 

acquisi<on and clearance. 



SYSTEMIC PED. SAFETY & OLYMPIC HWY NORTH IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN SERVICES 

RFQ 24-007 

P a g e  6 | 15 

Real Estate Services to obtain and deliver rights of way will be subject to an amendment to the 

design contract.  All real estate services must be performed in compliance with WSDOT LAG. 

2.08 Design Progress 

Upon acceptance of the concept plan, and approval of the project budget by the City, the 

Consultant will progress the design effort with 30/60/90 percent level milestones.  Typical 

progress submi$als will be required at each milestone for City review and comment.  The 

submi$als will contain the elements agreed within the nego<ated scope of services and should 

represent that typically provided for similar projects, including appropriate cost es<mates, 

contractual special condi<ons, and technical specifica<ons.  At the start of the phase the 

Consultant will provide a “mock-up” of the proposed plans and contract documents.  A baseline 

final design and construc<on schedule will also be provided.  

The Consultant will incorporate comments received from the City and/or WSDOT during each 

milestone review, and advance the plans to the next progress level. The Consultant’s 90 percent 

submission shall include completed contract plans, quality assurance checklist, the engineer’s 

es<mate of an<cipated construc<on costs, technical specifica<ons, and other back-end contract 

documents for the city to incorporate into their public works construc<on ITB template.  Upon 

approval of the city, the Consultant will progress the design and contract documents to 

comple<on. 

2.09 Bidding Assistance Services 

The Consultant shall aid the city in order to successfully adver<se, bid, and award the 

construc<on contract.  This will include assis<ng the City with responses to ques<ons from 

prospec<ve bidders, the prepara<on of addenda, and review and recommenda<on of award 

based on bids received.  

SECTION 3. SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS, EVALUATION, AND AWARD: 

3.01 Submi)al Requirements 

Consultants are required to submit four (4) printed copies of their response and one (1) electronic 

copy on a flash drive. All documents required to be submi$ed shall be enclosed in a sealed 

envelope clearly addressed on the outside as follows: 

City of Shelton 

A�en�on: Brooke Kilts 

SOQ Submi	al: Systemic Ped. Safety and Olympic Highway North (OHN) 

Improvements Design Services RFQ 24-007 

525 West Cota Street 

Shelton, WA  98584 

Consultant shall submit their SOQ on 8 ½ x 11” pages, using a minimum of 11-point font, single-

spaced formaFng. Proposals shall be stapled, or comb bound. Please do not coil bind. 

The maximum total of pages allowed is 12 (twelve). If pages are double-sided, each side will 

count as one (1) page. The Confirma<on of Business Organiza<on page shall be at the end of the 

proposal and will not be considered in the total page count. 

Cover page, cover le$er, and resumes will not count in the page count.  Resumes for the project 

manager and lead designer shall not exceed two pages.  Resumes for other key personnel shall be 

limited to a single one-sided page.  

Submi$als are due to the City of Shelton prior to the date and <me stated in Sec<on 1.02-

Schedule. Submi$als that are late, incomplete, or misdirected will be considered non-responsive, 

with no excep<ons. The City of Shelton relies on the city’s own computer system clock to 



SYSTEMIC PED. SAFETY & OLYMPIC HWY NORTH IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN SERVICES 

RFQ 24-007 

P a g e  7 | 15 

determine the correct <me and is not responsible for any delays or difficul<es experienced in the 

submi$al of a Statement. Statements may be hand-delivered or mailed.  Fax and email 

submissions WILL NOT be accepted and will be considered non-responsive to this RFQ.     

3.02 Statement Contents 

 Statements of Qualifica<ons are to address the items requested below in the order presented. 

A. Submi)al Cover Page (single page) 

B. Cover Le)er (single page) 

• An introduc<on to the firm and a brief background of the firm’s capabili<es 

• Clearly iden<fy the single contact person, including name, <tle, email address, mailing 

address, and phone number, for whom correspondence regarding the SOQ should be 

directed to. 

• Iden<fy any real or perceived conflicts of interests, inclusive of the primary and key staff 

members. 

• Provide a statement confirming that the subconsultants’ and all key personnel are 

available to work on the project to achieve a successful delivery outcome. 

• A duly authorized officer, employee, or agent of the Consultant must sign the Cover Le$er 

C. Firm Overview  

Provide an overview of the firm, including: 

• The size of the firm. 

• A summary of the firm’s organiza<onal structure. 

• Loca<on and size of office performing the bulk of the work. 

• Firm’s history of performance on similar federally funded municipal transporta<on 

projects u<lizing WSDOT LAG. 

D. Team, Experience, Qualifica1ons, and Past Performance  

• Iden<fy the Primary team member and key team members who may be assigned to this 

contract, including working <tles, degrees, cer<ficates, licenses, and technical exper<se. 

Describe the roles and responsibili<es of each team member and why the Primary team 

member was selected as the person to fulfill the role for this Contract. 

• Provide an organiza<onal chart demonstra<ng the rela<onship and hierarchy of the team 

described above. Iden<fy team members by name, posi<on, and discipline. Also iden<fy 

key backup personnel for each posi<on. 

• Include resumes of the Primary and key team members. The Primary team member shall 

be a licensed professional engineer in the State of Washington, with responsibility for 

stamping the contract documents according to state and federal laws.  Resumes will not 

be included in the page count for this sec<on and are limited to one single-sided page per 

individual except for the project manager and design lead. 

• Describe the Primary team member’s qualifica<ons and experience related to the scope 

of services iden<fied in Sec<on 2. List three projects or contracts completed within the 

last 5 (five) years in which similar or equal services were provided for a municipality or 

public en<ty, sta<ng some of the key challenges and how each was resolved. Please 

provide at least 3 (three) references that may be contacted to assist in the City’s 

evalua<on, including a brief summary of role and work performed and the name, <tle, 

organiza<on, e-mail, and telephone number for each reference. References should be 

recent, within the last two years or current clients. 

• Provide a table or list that summarizes the current major assignments and 

workload of all key team members, percentage of <me commi$ed to each 

current assignment, and an<cipated end date of major assignments. Also 

include a statement demonstra<ng the Primary team member’s dedica<on to 



SYSTEMIC PED. SAFETY & OLYMPIC HWY NORTH IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN SERVICES 

RFQ 24-007 

P a g e  8 | 15 

mee<ng the needs of the city and if/how that might be affected by compe<ng 

assignments outside of those directed by the city. 

E. Approach to the Project 

• Clearly but briefly, describe the team’s approach to the project, including quality 

assurance.  Iden<fy the poten<al risks envisioned and how the approach will mi<gate the 

risks to assure a successful delivery. 

• Provide a design and construc<on Gannt chart style schedule based on the approach. 

• Briefly discuss how this approach will assure that the goal established for Disadvantage 

Business Enterprise par<cipa<on will be met or exceeded (Sec. 1.08). 

F. Confirma1on of Business Organiza1on Form (A)achment A) 

3.03 Statement Withdrawal 

Any Statement may be withdrawn at any <me before the “Statement Due” date and <me 

specified in Sec<on 1.02 Schedule by providing a wri$en request for the withdrawal to the city. A 

duly authorized representa<ve of the firm shall execute the request. Withdrawal will not 

prejudice the right of the proposer to file a new Statement on this or future projects. 

3.04 Rejec1on or Acceptance of Statements of Qualifica1ons 

The City expressly reserves the following rights to: 

a. Disregard any or all irregulari<es in the proposals. 

b. Reject any or all the proposals or por<ons thereof. 

c. Base award with due regard to quality and <meliness of services, experience, compliance 

with the RFQ, and other factors as may be necessary under such circumstances. 

d. Reject all statements and re-adver<se at the City’s sole discre<on. 

3.05 Incurred Costs 

The City is not liable for any costs incurred by proposers in the prepara<on and/or presenta<on of 

their Statement of Qualifica<ons. 

3.06 Evalua1on Criteria 

The City will select consultants through a Qualifica<ons Based Selec<on (“QBS”) procedure in 

accordance with RCW 39.80. 

Evalua<on of the SOQ’s will be based on the following criteria (maximum 100 points available). 
 

EVALUATION CRITERIA MAXIMUM 

SCORE 

Competence and qualifica1ons of the Primary team member and the team 

proposed for this Contract, including their experience and  exper1se in the 

areas iden1fied in the RFQ, and any past performance with the City of 

Shelton, and/or ci1es of similar size. 

40 

The composi1on, capacity, and availability of the Primary team member 

and the team to successfully provide the City with the required services.  

20 

Demonstrated understanding of the City’s needs and services, via a 

proposed approach to be provided, and the firm’s ability to meet those 

requirements by applying its knowledge and experience. 

30 

Accuracy, completeness, legibility, and coherency of the SOQ 10 

                                                                                                               TOTAL = 100 

The City, at its sole discre<on, has the right to nego<ate with any or all proposers regarding their 

statements. Addi<onally, the City may reject or accept any or all statements or parts thereof, 

submi$ed in response to this RFQ. 

 



SYSTEMIC PED. SAFETY & OLYMPIC HWY NORTH IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN SERVICES 

RFQ 24-007 

P a g e  9 | 15 

3.07 Evalua1on and Award Process 

An evalua<on team will review the SOQs and evaluate all the responses based on the evalua<on 

criteria listed above. The city may request clarifica<ons or addi<onal informa<on, if needed. A 

selec<on may be made based on the SOQs and ini<al evalua<on criteria alone. Alterna<vely, 

Consultants determined to be the most qualified through the ini<al evalua<on phase (short-

listed) may be invited to par<cipate in team interviews comprised of the proposed Primary team 

member and key team members. The City, at its discre<on, may conduct addi<onal interviews, 

reference checks, or conduct personal interviews with the proposed Primary team member to 

obtain further clarifica<on. Evalua<on of the short-listed Consultants will be based on a 

combina<on of reference checks and interviews.  

The City intends to select the Consultant who represents the most qualified team to the City and 

begin the nego<a<on and award process based on the evaluated scores. The selected Consultant 

will be invited to enter contract nego<a<ons with the City and, following successful nego<a<ons, 

will be expected to enter into a Local Agency Standard A&E Professional Services Agreement, 

which will include an exhibit that outlines the City’s invoicing procedures and requirements. 

Should the City be unable to nego<ate a sa<sfactory contract with the Consultant considered to 

be the most qualified at a price the City determines to be fair, compe<<ve, and reasonable, 

nego<a<ons may terminate with that Consultant and the City may begin nego<a<ons with the 

second most qualified Consultant and so on. Should the City be unable to nego<ate a sa<sfactory 

contract with any of the shortlisted Consultants, the City shall select addi<onal firms in the order 

of their competence and qualifica<ons and con<nue nego<a<ons in accordance with this 

subsec<on un<l an agreement is reached or resolicit qualifica<ons from addi<onal Consultants. 

The City reserves the right to nego<ate all elements of the submi$als, proposals, terms and 

condi<ons, and/or scope of services as part of the contract nego<a<on process prior to any 

formal authoriza<on of the contract by the City. 

 

 

 



SYSTEMIC PED. SAFETY & OLYMPIC HWY NORTH IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN SERVICES 

RFQ 24-007 

P a g e  10 | 15 

ATTACHMENT A 

CONFIRMATION OF BUSINESS ORGANIZATION FORM 
 

  

 

Iden<fica<on of Business Organiza<on: 

 

The proposer, by checking the applicable box, represents that it operates as: 

 

[__]  a corpora<on incorporated under the laws of the State of Washington 

 

[__] an individual doing business as _________________________________ 

 

[__]  a partnership (iden<fy all partners on a separate page, a$ached) 

 

[__] a joint venture (iden<fy all joint ventures on a separate page, a$ached) 

 

[__] other (please specify)       

 

 

____________________________   ____________________________ 

Proposer or Company Name    Washington UBI # 

 

____________________________   ____________________________ 

Address of Proposer     Federal Tax ID # 

 

____________________________   ____________________________ 

Telephone Number     Signature 

 

____________________________   ____________________________ 

Email       Printed Name and Title 

 

 



SYSTEMIC PED. SAFETY & OLYMPIC HWY NORTH IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN SERVICES 

RFQ 24-007 

P a g e  11 | 15 

ATTACHMENT B 

Intersec<ons in “blue” are funded by HSIP 

Loca<ons in are funded by TIB 
 

 

Olympic Hwy North Project Limits 

 



SYSTEMIC PED. SAFETY & OLYMPIC HWY NORTH IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN SERVICES 

RFQ 24-007 

P a g e  12 | 15 

  

Railroad Ave/7th Street and Railroad Ave/3rd Street Intersec<ons 
 

 
 

State Route 3 Mid-Block Near Bellevue Ave. 

 



SYSTEMIC PED. SAFETY & OLYMPIC HWY NORTH IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN SERVICES 

RFQ 24-007 

P a g e  13 | 15 

ATTACHMENT C 
 

DESIGN CONCEPTS (subject to revision) 

 

 

Olympic Hwy North and I Street 



SYSTEMIC PED. SAFETY & OLYMPIC HWY NORTH IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN SERVICES 

RFQ 24-007 

P a g e  14 | 15 

 

 

Olympic Highway South (SR 3) Mid-Block Pedestrian Crossing 

 

 

 

 



SYSTEMIC PED. SAFETY & OLYMPIC HWY NORTH IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN SERVICES 

RFQ 24-007 

P a g e  15 | 15 

 
West Railroad Ave. and 3rd Street 

and 

West Railroad Ave. and 7th Street (not shown – see white text box) 



CITY OF SHELTON

1 | P a g e

Question & Answer #1 Released 11/05/2024 @ 2:20 pm

RFQ #24-007 - Systemic Ped. Safety & Olympic Hwy North Improvements Design Services

This document is posted to capture the questions received during the question & answer period for 
Contract #24-007-PSA, Systemic Ped. Safety & Olympic Hwy North Improvements Design Services. This 
document is the official response to the questions received.

No questions or responses included in this document require any change to the original RFQ, this 
document stands alone.

Question Response Did this change 
the solicitation?

Will this contract require a WSDOT 
ICR review or ICR audit for all 
consultants and sub-consultants?

The selected Consultant will be required 
to enter into a standard WSDOT 
Consultant Agreement which requires an 
annual update of the consultant’s ICR, as 
stated in Section V – Payment Provisions 
of the Agreement, and in accordance 
with 23 CFR 172.11(b)(1). ICR reviews 
and audits are part of WSDOT’s process 
in approving each consulting firm’s rates 
to determine if the costs are reasonable 
and allowable.

No

Does the City of Shelton have a list of 
qualified consultants that you 
currently use for projects? We are 
working on our team and 
qualifications and would prefer to 
include firms on our team who are 
already qualified with the City.

For projects that utilize federal funding, 
federal regulations require a full 
qualifications-based selection (QBS) 
process for each project, meaning that 
establishing a pre-qualified pool of 
consultants is not permitted. This is in 
line with the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) guidelines and 
requirements.

No

General Statement for Clarity and Emphasis:
This project involves federal funding, and as a non-CA agency, it is critical that the selected 
consultant has substantial experience with and a strong understanding of FHWA requirements and 
processes. Proficiency – not just familiarity – with these steps and requirements is essential to 
guide and assist the city effectively through each checkpoint, ensuring smooth project delivery and 
ongoing compliance throughout the project lifecycle.



Evaluators: Kenny Oberg; Aaron Nix; Glenn Chouinard

SOQ Evaluations

Criterion 

Consultant 

Evaluator Initials KO AN GC KO AN GC KO AN GC KO AN GC KO AN GC

Fuller Designs 15 25 5 2 13 0 10 23 0 2 5 5 29 66 10

TranspoGroup 40 36 30 19 18 12 30 26 25 10 10 8 99 90 75

Gray & Osborne, Inc. 40 37 20 17 16 10 29 25 10 5 7 5 91 85 45

SCJ Alliance 38 35 35 18 13 15 29 23 28 6 7 8 91 78 86

Interviewers: Kenny Oberg; Aaron Nix; Glenn Chouinard; Andrea Archer-Parsons

Interview Evaluations

Criterion 

Evaluator Initials KO AN GC AA KO AN GC AA KO AN GC AA

TranspoGroup 9 8 10 10 36 35 40 40 45 43 50 50

Gray & Osborne, Inc. 8 7 2 8 39 33 36 34 47 40 38 42

SCJ Alliance 8 8 6 10 38 37 40 39 46 45 46 49

Summary of Totals

Evaluation

Consultant

Fuller Designs

TranspoGroup

Gray & Osborne, Inc.

SCJ Alliance

12/11/2024

RFQ 24-007 SYSTEMIC PED. SAFETY & OLYMPIC HWY NORTH IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN SERVICES

Interactive Team Excersise: 

Understanding of project requirements, 

team collaboration and communication, 

logical sequencing and scoping

Max 10 pts

Responses to City Questions

Max 45 pts

255

N/A

186

Interview

105

441

221 167 388

SOQ
Total

(520 Max)

264 188 452

105

186

Total 

Combined 

Score

Max: 220

Total Scores per Evaluator

Maximum: 55 each

188

167

Competence & qualifications of 

Primary Team Member and Team 

Proposed, including experience 

and expertise in the areas 

identified in the RFQ and any past 

performance

Max Points: 40

Composition, Capacity, & 

Availability of the primary 

team member and the team 

to successfully provide the 

City with the required 

services

Max Points: 20

Demonstrated understanding 

of City's needs and services, 

via a proposed approach to 

be provided, and the firm's 

ability to meet those 

requiremetns by applying its 

knowledge and experience.

Max Points: 30

Accuracy, completeness, 

legibility, and coherency of 

the SOQ

Max Points: 10

Total Scores per Evaluator

Maximum: 100 per 

Evaluator

264

221

Total 

Combined 

Score

Max: 300

105

255



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F4) 
 
Touch Date:  03/18/2025  
Brief Date:     04/01/2025    
Action Date:  04/15/2025 
 

Department:     Administration  
 
Presented By:  Mark Ziegler  

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Transportation Benefit District   
   Ballot Proposition 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
   Resolution No. 1376-0325 
 

    

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 None 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head   

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
In May of 2015 the Shelton City Commission established the Shelton Transportation Benefit District (TBD) to 
provide for a funding mechanism to be utilized for transportation improvements that preserve, maintain and 
operate the planned and/or existing transportation infrastructure of the City/District consistent with requirements 
of RCW 36.73. 
 
Also, in 2015 the TBD board approved Resolution No. TBD 04-0515 calling for a special election held on 
November 3rd for the authorization of sales and use tax of .2% for the purpose of financing all or a portion of the 
costs associated with transportation improvements in the district. 
 
RCW 36.73.065 establishes the taxes, fees, and charges available to TBDs. A TBD may impose, by a majority 
vote of the governing board the following: 

o Up to $20 vehicle licensing fee 
o Up to $40 vehicle licensing fee if a vehicle fee of $20 has been imposed for 24 months 
o Up to $50 vehicle licensing fee if a vehicle fee of $40 has been imposed for 24 months 
o Any license fee over $50, up to a max. $100, must be approved by voters 
o A fee or charge on the construction of commercial buildings, industrial buildings, or any 

other commercial or industrial building or building space or appurtenance 
o .1% sales and use tax 

 
Further, with approval of a majority of voters in the district as authorized by RCW 82.14.048 the TBD may 
impose a sales and use tax not to exceed .3% not exceeding 10 years.  The sales and use tax may be 
renewed for an additional 10 years with voter approval. 
 
The existing .2% sales and use tax approved by voters on November 3, 2015 expires in February 2026, 
with the last collection distributed to the City in April 2026.  

 
  
 

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.73
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.73.065
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=82.14.0455


Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
The existing sales and use tax of .2% generates approximately 740,000 annually ($741,169 is the actual 
amount for 2024). The adopted 2025 street fund expenditure budget is $2,377,749. 

 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
If approved by Council staff will develop further information to inform the public of the measure. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends: “I move to place Resolution No. 1376-0325 on the April 15, 2025 action agenda for further 
consideration”. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1376-0325 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SHELTON CITY COUNCIL PROVIDING FOR A BALLOT 
PROPOSITION TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS TO RENEW AND 

CONTINUE TO IMPOSE A SALES AND USE TAX UPON ALL TAXABLE RETAIL SALES AND 
USES IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO-TENTHS OF ONE PERCENT (0.2%) FOR THE PURPOSE 

OF FINANCING TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS 
 

WHEREAS, RCW 35.21.225 authorizes cities to establish transportation benefit 
districts subject to the provisions of RCW 36.73; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Shelton duly established the City of Shelton Transportation 

Benefit District by City of Shelton Ordinance No. 1869-0315, passed on March 30, 2015; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, under Ordinance No. 1869-0315, the Shelton City Council assumed the 

authority of the Transportation Benefit District; and  
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 1869-0315 authorized the City of Shelton to impose a 
sales and use tax in accordance with RCW 82.14.0455 in an amount not exceeding two-
tenths of one percent (0.2%) for a period of 10 years for the purpose of financing 
transportation improvements; and  
 

WHEREAS, the ballot measure to impose the tax was approved by the voters and the 
City of Shelton has been collecting that tax since 2016; and  
 

WHEREAS, if renewed by the voters, revenues from the sales and use tax will be 
used entirely for transportation improvements in the city, and will apply to people who 
shop and thereby use streets, transportation systems, and sidewalks in the City of Shelton 
and not just to City residents; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Shelton City Council has considered this matter during a regular 
public meeting, has given this matter careful review and consideration, and finds that good 
government and the best interests of the City will be served by passage of this resolution.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Shelton City Council resolves as follows:  
 
Section 1: Purpose. The Shelton City Council finds that it is in the best interests of 

the City to submit to the qualified voters of the City, at an election to be held in conjunction 
with the primary election on August 5, 2025, a proposition authorizing the City to renew a 
sales and use tax of two-tenths of one percent (0.2%) for the purpose of raising revenue to 
fund transportation improvements in the district.  

 
Section 2: Description of transportation improvements. The revenues from the 

sales and use tax shall be used to improve, preserve, maintain and operate the city’s 



investments in transportation infrastructure, reduce the risk of transportation facility 
failure, improve safety, reduce congestion or stem the expected increase in congestion 
created by failing roads. Revenues may, at the City Council’s option, be also used to fund 
projects, as follows: 

 
1. Projects identified in the city yearly adopted Six-Year Transportation Improvement 

Plan. 
  

2. Modeling of the transportation system capacity and pavement condition index.  
 

3. Sidewalk, street, and alley repair and maintenance. 
 

4. Projects identified in the 2024 Pavement Condition Assessment Report, or as 
amended, such crack sealing, roadway overlays, and chip sealing. 
 

5. Offset costs for the public works street operation and maintenance division budgets. 
 

6. Projects identified in the 2025 ADA Transition Plan, or as amended. 
 

7. Projects identified in the 2025 Transportation Comprehensive Plan, or as amended. 
 

8. Use of matching funds to leverage State and Federal transportation grant 
opportunities.  
 

9. City-wide transportation safety and right-of-way improvement projects. 
 

10. Improvements to the city multi-modal bike/pedestrian connectivity, including 
critical pedestrian route projects. 
 

11. Use funds in house and/or in partnership with Mason County to resurface 
residential roadways. 

 
Section 3: Ballot Measure. The Mason County Auditor is hereby requested to call 

and conduct an election in the manner provided by law, to be held on August 5, 2025, for 
the purpose of submitting to the qualified voters of the City a proposition in substantially 
the following form:  
 
 

CITY OF SHELTON SALES AND USE TAX FOR TRANSPORTATION 
IMPROVEMENTS 

 
The Shelton City Council adopted Resolution No. 1376-0325 concerning a sales and 

use tax to fund transportation improvements. This proposition would renew a sales and use 
tax of two-tenths of one percent (0.2%) on all taxable retail sales and uses within the 
district in accordance with RCW 82.14.0455 for a term of ten (10) years, for the purpose of 



funding street and pedestrian maintenance, repair, and construction projects as identified 
in the City’s Transportation programs or the period of time necessary to repay 
indebtedness (if any), for the purpose of funding transportation improvements.  

 
Should this proposition be approved? 
 
     Yes………………………………………………□ No…………………………………………□  
 
Section 4: Authorizations. The Shelton City Clerk is authorized and directed to 

present this resolution to the Mason County Auditor in accordance with RCW 29A.04.321 
and as provided by law.  

 
Section 5: Corrections. The Shelton City Clerk is authorized to make necessary 

clerical corrections to this resolution, including, but not limited to, the correction of 
scrivener’s and clerical errors, references, numbering, section and subsection numbers and 
any references thereto, and to make corrections and revisions consistent with the 
requirements of the offices of the Mason County Prosecuting Attorney or County Auditor 
which do not change the substantive meaning of this resolution.  

 
Section 6: Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this resolution 

should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other 
section, sentence, clause or phrase.  

ADOPTED by the Shelton City Council at its regularly scheduled meeting on April 15, 
2025. 

 APPROVED: 

 _________________________   

 Mayor Eric Onisko 

 ATTEST/AUTHENTICATE: 

__________________________                                                                                                                
Donna Nault                                                                                                                                                          
Shelton City Clerk 



 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G1) 
 
Touch Date: 02/19/2025  
Brief Date:    03/18/2025      
Action Date:  04/01/2025   
 

Department: Public Works  
 
Presented By: Aaron Nix, Assistant Public Works Director  

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
 Mid-Block Crossing (OBJH)   
 Safety Improvement Design 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
  - Resolution No. 1350-0924 
  - Work Order #SCJ-25001  
 

    

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 None 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head       J.O.H. 

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk DN 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
MZ      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
Several concerns have been brought to the city pertaining to the mid-block crossing that exists near the 
entrance of Oakland Bay Junior High School at Wallace Kneeland Blvd. The purpose of this project is to 
develop an alternative design for this existing crossing to provide enhanced advanced visual warning, 
due to its proximity to a curve in the road. A mid-street refuge island will be considered in the ultimate 
design for this crossing.  
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
$40,000 is budgeted in 2025 to cover the expenses for this design work. Construction funding will need 
to be budgeted once the design is complete.  

 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
The Public Works Department maintains all materials for this project. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends “I move to adopt Resolution No. 1350-0924 as presented”. 



Oakland Bay Junior High School Mid-Block Crossing Aerial Photograph 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Street View 

 
 

 

Existing 
Crossing 



RESOLUTION NO. 1350-0924 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, 
WASHINGTON AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE A 
PUBLIC WORKS ON-CALL CONSULTANT ROSTER WORK ORDER TO 

PROVIDE DESIGN AND BIDDING SERVICES FOR A MID BLOCK 
PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 
 

WHEREAS, City Staff reached out to firms on the city engineering on-call consultant 
roster and determined that SCJ Alliance is the most qualified and experienced firm to help 
City Staff in the design and bidding services pertaining to potential enhancements to the 
existing mid-block pedestrian crossing along Wallace Kneeland Boulevard in front of 
Oakland Bay Junior High School; and 
 
WHEREAS, SCJ Alliance has experience in designing these types of improvements and 
has completed excellent work on past projects for the City, such as the for the pavement 
condition index evaluation, multiple traffic impact study reviews, the Cota Street re-
stripping project design, and the current work they are completing updating the City 
Transportation Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved, as part of the 2025 budget, a budget allocation 
($40,000) towards completing this work. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Shelton, 
Washington, that the City Manager is authorized to execute a work order for the identified 
tasks in the attached scope/fee with SCJ Alliance (On-Call Consultant), and subsequent 
amendments, in the completion of the design and bidding support. 
 
INTRODUCED on the 18th of March 2025 and PASSED by the City Council at its regular 
meeting on the 1st of April 2025. 
 
 
 
        _________________________ 
ATTEST:       Mayor  Onisko 
 
 
_______________________ 
City Clerk Nault 



 

ON-CALL A&E CONSULTANT POOL WORK ORDER 

Work Order SCJ-25001  
Date: February 27, 2025 

To:  SCJ Alliance 

Category: Traffic & Transportation Engineering 

Task: Wallace Kneeland-OBJH Mid-Block Crossing 

Scope of Work: SCJ Alliance will prepare plans, specifications, and provide bidding support 

for mid-block crossing improvements on Wallace Kneeland Blvd in front of Oakland Bay 

Junior High, as described in Exhibit A, attached hereto. 

 

Budget:  $39,640.95        Basis:   ☐  Lump Sum    ☒ Time & Materials 

 

Task Order Contact Information 

City of Shelton SCJ Alliance 

Name: Aaron Nix Name: Patrick Holm, PE 

Phone: 360.432.5118  Phone: 360.352.1509 

Email Address: aaron.nix@sheltonwa.gov Email Address: Patrick.holm@scjalliance.com 

 

Approving Signatures 

City of Shelton:  

 

 

Date:  

Mark Ziegler, City Manager    |    Resolution No. 1350-0924 

SCJ Alliance: 

 

 

Date: 

Scott Sawyer, PE, Principal 

 

This work shall be done according to the contractual agreement titled, On-Call A&E Consultant Pool 

between the City of Shelton and SCJ Alliance dated January 21, 2025. 

Invoices pertaining to assigned Work Orders shall be accompanied by a completed Billing Voucher, 

referencing the Work Order Number (located at the top of this form), and shall be submitted via email 

to PW.Invoices@sheltonwa.gov. 

Work Order # SCJ-25001 Page 1 of 10



Exhibit A
Scope of Work

Wallace Kneeland Boulevard Mid-Block Pedestrian Crossing
Shelton, WA

Prepared For: Aaron Nix, Capital Projects Manager

Prepared By: Patrick Holm, PE
Sam Rowswell, PE

Date Prepared: February 03, 2025

Introduction:
The Wallace Kneeland Boulevard Mid-Block Pedestrian Crossing Project (“Project”) is part of the City of Shelton’s 
Local Road Safety Plan. It is identified in the Comprehensive Six (6) Year Transportation Improvement Program 
for the City of Shelton for the Years 2025 through 2030. This project will improve the Wallace Kneeland 
pedestrian crossing at the Oakland Bay Jr. High School entrance.

The Project will add a pedestrian refuge island in the center of Wallace Kneeland at the Oakland Bay Jr. High 
School entrance. The existing lanes must be restriped to fit the crossing within the existing roadway width. A 
rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon (RRFB) will be installed at the proposed pedestrian refuge island. The existing 
RRFBs at the crossing will be revised to two-sided RRFBs.

This project is funded by local funds.

Assumptions:

 Existing Sidewalk Curb Ramps conform to ADA standards and will not have to be reconstructed.
 Cultural resources will not be required for this project.
 A Geotechnical report will not be required for this project.
 The project is SEPA categorically exempt and the City will process all documentation.
 The Project will use the Department of Ecology Stormwater Management Manual for Western 

Washington (SWMMWW) 2019.
 Minimum Requirements (MR) #1 and #2 will be required.

The SCJ Team includes the following sub-consultant partners:

 MNT2COAST – surveyor

The Scope of Work consists of the following phases:

 Phase 1 – Project Management
 Phase 2 – Survey Base Mapping
 Phase 3 – Plans, Specifications, and Estimate Documents

Work Order # SCJ-25001 Page 2 of 10



 Phase 4 – Bid Services

Phase 1 Project Management
Task 1 Project Management

1) Management: Manage the project by directing and supervising staff and reviewing work 
throughout its duration. This management is for the overall work rather than specific phases.

2) Schedule and Budget: Develop a critical path project schedule to match the scope of work. 
Identify task durations, predecessors, City reviews, deliverables, and milestones. Monitor 
earned value and actual costs on a bi-weekly basis.

3) Progress Reporting: Review and verify weekly project charges. Prepare and submit periodic 
progress reports. Progress reports will show (1) work performed last period, (2) work planned 
this period, (3) schedule and budget status (including a 3-line earned value chart), (4) a 
summary of scope changes/added value, and (5) items needed from the CITY and/or others.

4) Billing: Prepare a monthly progress bill. The bill will show staff hours for each phase (e.g., Phase 
1: Project Management) in billing terms.

5) Subconsultant Administration: Execute and administer sub-agreements. Review and approve 
monthly invoices.

Task 2 Quality

1) Quality Control: Provide a senior-level review of phase deliverables before submittal to the City.
2) Quality Assurance: Audit quality check activities and documentation periodically.

Phase 1 Understanding
 Project management will be provided over a 4-month time frame, and the estimated 

number of meetings and project coordination will be reflected in the budget.
 Progress billings will be submitted monthly to the City.
 Timelines and milestones will be outlined in a master schedule using Microsoft Project and 

will be updated for each progress billing.

Phase 1 Deliverables
 Progress Reports submitted via email in PDF format.
 Progress billings are submitted monthly via email in PDF format.
 MS Project schedule updates submitted via email in PDF format.

Work Order # SCJ-25001 Page 3 of 10

8730 Tallon Lane NE, Suite 200  Lacey, WA 98516  Office 360.352.1465  Fax 360.352.1509  scjalliance.com



Phase 2 Topographic Survey (MNT2COAST)
Task 1 Topographic Survey

1) M2C will complete a Topographic Survey of the site as shown on the attached Survey Limits 
Exhibit. The topographic Survey will include the following:

 One-foot Contours with tops, toes, and brakes.
 Other visible improvements such as curbs, mailboxes, light poles, etc.
 Hard surfaces such as concrete, pavement and gravel.
 Trees 6” and larger dbh with diameter and species measured.
 M2C will hire and coordinate a utility locator service to paint the buried conductible utilities. 

M2C will then field map the utilities paint marks and surface appurtenances. We will also 
open and measure utility structures and measure pipe sizes, types, and invert elevations.

2) The Survey will be completed on the Washington State Plane Coordinate System and NAVD 88 
vertical datum.

Task 2 Right-of-Way (ROW) Establishment

1) MTN2COAST, LLC (M2C) will complete the necessary field and office work to establish the right-
of-way lines along the project roadway based upon record information available. M2C will not 
be completing a property survey of adjacent lots or showing easements on those properties. All 
ROW information will be considered preliminary and no corners will be set by M2C. It is 
assumed that no Record of Survey is required for this project.

Phase 2 Deliverables
 Topographic Survey Map in pdf form.
 ACAD electronic drawing file of the project by email.

Phase 3 Plans, Specifications, and Estimate Documents
Task 1 30% Design

1) Survey Review: Review the survey from MNT2COAST. Go out in the field with the survey to 
confirm the items surveyed.

2) Horizontal layout:

 Define alignment.
 Lay out the pedestrian refuge island and revise the striping to accommodate the pedestrian 

refuge island.

Work Order # SCJ-25001 Page 4 of 10

8730 Tallon Lane NE, Suite 200  Lacey, WA 98516  Office 360.352.1465  Fax 360.352.1509  scjalliance.com



3) Vertical layout:

 Confirm that the pedestrian refuge island will conform to ADA standards.

4) Draft Stormwater Memo: Prepare a Draft Stormwater Memo addressing the minimum 
requirements for the Project.

5) 30% Plan Set: Prepare the following plan types at 1”=20’ scale (unless noted otherwise). The 
number of plan sheets per plan type is shown in parentheses.

 Cover Sheet (1 sheet)
 Horizontal Alignment Plan (1 sheet)
 Temporary Erosion and Sediment Control and Removal Plan (3 sheets).
 Paving/Signing/Channelization Plan (3 sheets)
 Pedestrian Refuge Island Detail (1 sheet)
 RRFB Plan (1 sheet)
 RRFB Detail (1 sheet)

6) 30% Estimate:

 Develop quantities based on the preliminary plans.
 Assign unit costs for quantified items and assign lump sum costs to other items based on 

professional judgment.
 Develop a preliminary design (30%) construction cost estimate with a 30% contingency.
 Provide an order-of-magnitude estimate of the number of construction working days.

7) 30% Comment Resolution: Respond to 30% review comments in a matrix format (or Bluebeam). 
Attend one (1) meeting with the City to resolve comments from the 30% review.

Task 2 60% Design

1) Horizontal layout: Revise design based on 30% review comments.
2) 60% Progress Meeting: Consultant will not submit a formal 60% submittal. Instead, the 

Consultant will attend a meeting in person with the City to review the design and plan progress 
with the City.

3) 60% Cost Estimate: Develop quantities based on the 60% progress plans. Develop a 60% 
construction cost estimate by assigning unit costs for quantified pay items and lump sum costs 
to other items based on professional judgment.

Task 3 100% Plans, Estimate, and Specifications

1) Final Stormwater Memo: Finalize Stormwater Memo.
2) 100% Plan Set: Prepare the following plan types at 1”=20’ scale (unless noted otherwise). The 

number of plan sheets per plan type is shown in parentheses.

 Cover Sheet (1 sheet)

Work Order # SCJ-25001 Page 5 of 10

8730 Tallon Lane NE, Suite 200  Lacey, WA 98516  Office 360.352.1465  Fax 360.352.1509  scjalliance.com



 Horizontal Alignment Plan (1 sheet)
 Temporary Erosion and Sediment Control and Removal Plan (3 sheets).
 Paving/Signing/Channelization Plan (3 sheets)
 Pedestrian Refuge Island Detail (1 sheet)
 RRFB Plan (1 sheet)
 RRFB Detail (1 sheet)
 Temporary Traffic Control Plan (3 sheets)

3) 100% Cost Estimate: Develop quantities based on the 100% progress plans. Develop a 100% 
construction cost estimate by assigning unit costs for quantified pay items and lump sum costs 
to other items based on professional judgment.

4) 100% Contract Documents:

 Create the runlist for special provisions of the standard specifications.
 Write special provisions for all non-standard items.
 Compile the 100% Contract Documents, which will include:

(a) Front-end documents
(b) Special Provisions

5) 100% Comment Resolution: Respond to 100% review comments in a matrix format (or 
Bluebeam).

Task 4 Bid Documents

1) Bid Ready Plans: Revise the plan set per 100% review comments.
2) Bid Ready Estimate: Revise estimate per 100% review comments.
3) Bid Ready Construction Documents: Revise Construction Documents per 100% review 

comments.

Phase 3 Understanding
 There will be no 60% submittal. The project team will meet with the City between 30% and 

90% to review comments and progress.

Phase 3 Deliverables
 Draft Stormwater Memo in PDF format submitted via email.
 30% Plans in PDF format submitted via email.
 30% Estimate in PDF format submitted via email.
 Final Stormwater Memo in PDF format submitted via email.
 100% Plans in PDF format submitted via email.
 100% Estimate in PDF format Submitted via email.
 100% Contract Documents in PDF format submitted via email.
 Bid Ready Plans in PDF format submitted via email.

Work Order # SCJ-25001 Page 6 of 10

8730 Tallon Lane NE, Suite 200  Lacey, WA 98516  Office 360.352.1465  Fax 360.352.1509  scjalliance.com



 Bid Ready Estimate in PDF format submitted via email.
 Bid Ready Contract Documents in PDF format submitted via email.

Phase 4 Bid Services
Task 1 Addendum

1) Addendum: SCJ will create up to two (2) addendums for the Project. The addendums will 
include requests for information questions and any required plan, specifications, and estimate 
revisions.

Phase 4 Understanding
 The City will be the main point of contact for requests for information questions.
 The City will upload and distribute all addendums.

Phase 4 Deliverables
 Up to two (2) addendums in PDF format were submitted via email.

Work Order # SCJ-25001 Page 7 of 10

8730 Tallon Lane NE, Suite 200  Lacey, WA 98516  Office 360.352.1465  Fax 360.352.1509  scjalliance.com



SCJ Alliance

Client:

Project:

Job #: Template Version:

File Name: 20241125_Wallace Kneeland Mid-Block Fee.xlsm Contract Type:

Consultant Fee Determination

DIRECT SALARY COST

Classification Hours Fully Burdened Rate Amount

Principal 19.0 $238.00 $4,522.00

E4 Engineer 55.0 $179.00 $9,845.00

E3 Engineer 65.0 $145.00 $9,425.00

T3 Technician 53.0 $120.00 $6,360.00

PM2 Project Manager 2.0 $199.00 $398.00

Project Accountant 6.0 $140.00 $840.00

TOTAL SALARY COST Total Salary Cost $31,390.00

SUBCONSULTANTS Yes

$7,960

x

Subconsultant Fee Subtotal: $0 $7,960.00

Q Subconsultant Markup: 0% $0.00

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

Copies, Printing, etc. 0.5% of the Total Salary Costs $156.95

Mileage 200 miles at $0.670 per mile $134.00

Expenses Subtotal: $290.95

Expenses Markup: 0% $0.00

SUBTOTAL (SALARY, SUBCONSULTANTS AND EXPENSES)

Subtotal (Salary, Subconsultants and Expenses) $39,640.95

MANAGEMENT RESERVE FUND (MRF)

Management Reserve: $0 $0.00

Total Estimated Budget: $39,640.95

Subconsultant Fee Determination Summary

Wallace Kneeland Mid-Block Crossing

7/8/202424-000628

MNT2COAST PHASE 2 SURVEY (MNT2COAST)

Billing Rate Schedule

City of Shelton

Work Order # SCJ-25001 Page 8 of 10



Subconsultant Labor Hour Estimate

SCJ Alliance

Client: City of Shelton Template Version: 7/8/2024

Project: Wallace Kneeland Mid-Block Crossing Contract Type: Billing Rate Schedule    N/A

Job #: 24-000628    N/A

File Name: 20241125_Wallace Kneeland Mid-Block Fee.xlsm Totals: 238 179 145 120 199 140

Template Version: Patrick Holm
Sam 

Rowswell

Sarah 

Gustafson
Alex Johnson George Hilen Melissa Oum

Phase &       

Task No.
Principal E4 Engineer E3 Engineer

T3 

Technician

PM2 Project 

Manager

Project 

Accountant

Total Direct Labor 

Hours & Cost
Total Cost

PHASE 1 #REF!

Task 1 3,226.00$                    

1 1.0 4.0 5.0 954.00$                       

2 4.0 4.0 716.00$                       

3 2.0 2.0 358.00$                       

4 6.0 6.0 840.00$                       

5 2.0 2.0 358.00$                       

Subtotal Hours: 1.0 12.0 6.0 19.0 3,226.00$                    

Task 3 3,336.00$                    

1 4.0 4.0 8.0 1,668.00$                    

2 4.0 4.0 8.0 1,668.00$                    

Subtotal Hours: 8.0 8.0 16.0 3,336.00$                    

Total Phase Hours: 9.0 20.0 6.0 35.0 35.0

Total Phase Direct Labor: $2,142.00 $3,580.00 $840.00 $6,562.00 6,562.00$                    

PHASE 2

PHASE 3 $14,663.00 

Task 1 12,182.00$                  

1 3.0 3.0 3.0 9.0 1,332.00$                    

2 1.0 3.0 4.0 8.0 1,355.00$                    

3 1.0 4.0 5.0 759.00$                       

4 2.0 4.0 6.0 938.00$                       

5 -$                              

X 1.0 1.0 2.0 4.0 564.00$                       

X 1.0 2.0 2.0 5.0 709.00$                       

X 1.0 2.0 6.0 9.0 1,189.00$                    

X 1.0 2.0 6.0 9.0 1,189.00$                    

X 1.0 2.0 4.0 7.0 949.00$                       

X 2.0 3.0 1.0 6.0 849.00$                       

X 2.0 3.0 1.0 6.0 849.00$                       

6 2.0 4.0 6.0 938.00$                       

7 1.0 1.0 1.0 3.0 562.00$                       

Subtotal Hours: 2.0 17.0 33.0 29.0 2.0 83.0 12,182.00$                  

Task 3 2,481.00$                    

1 1.0 2.0 3.0 469.00$                       

2 2.0 2.0 2.0 6.0 1,124.00$                    

3 2.0 2.0 2.0 6.0 888.00$                       

Subtotal Hours: 2.0 5.0 6.0 2.0 15.0 2,481.00$                    

Task 3 5,602.00$                    

1 1.0 2.0 3.0 469.00$                       

2 2.0 2.0 4.0 834.00$                       

X 1.0 1.0 2.0 265.00$                       

X 1.0 1.0 2.0 265.00$                       

X 1.0 1.0 2.0 4.0 564.00$                       

X 1.0 1.0 2.0 4.0 564.00$                       

X 1.0 1.0 2.0 4.0 564.00$                       

X 1.0 1.0 2.0 4.0 564.00$                       

X 1.0 1.0 2.0 4.0 564.00$                       

X 1.0 2.0 4.0 7.0 949.00$                       

3 -$                              

30% Estimate

30% Plan Set

RRFB Detail (1 sheet)

RRFB Plan (1 sheet)

Pedestrian Refuge Island Detail (1 sheet)

Paving/Singin/Channelization Plan (3 sheets)

Temporary Erosion and Sediment Control and Removal Plan (3 sheets)

Horizontal Alignment Plan (1 sheet)

Cover Sheet (1 Sheet)

100% Plans, Estimate, and Specifications

Final Stormwater Report

100% Plans Set

100% Cost Estimate

Temporary Traffic Control Plan (3 Sheets)

RRFB Detail (1 sheet)

RRFB Plan (1 sheet)

Pedestrian Refuge Island Detail (1 sheet)

Paving/Singin/Channelization Plan (3 sheets)

Temporary Erosion and Sediment Control and Removal Plan (3 sheets)

Horizontal Alignment Plan (1 sheet)

Cover Sheet (1 Sheet)

PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND ESTIMATE DOCUMENTS

30% Design

Survey Review

Horizontal Layout

Vertical Layout

Draft Stormwater Report

30% Comment Resolution

60% Design

Horizontal Layout

60% Progress Meeting

60% Cost Estimate

Progress Reporting

Schedule and Budget

SURVEY (MNT2COAST)

Management

Billing

Subconsultant Administration

Quality

Quality Control

Quality Assurance

Project Management

Phase & Task Title

PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Work Order # SCJ-25001 Page 9 of 10



Subconsultant Labor Hour Estimate

SCJ Alliance

Client: City of Shelton Template Version: 7/8/2024

Project: Wallace Kneeland Mid-Block Crossing Contract Type: Billing Rate Schedule    N/A

Job #: 24-000628    N/A

File Name: 20241125_Wallace Kneeland Mid-Block Fee.xlsm Totals: 238 179 145 120 199 140

Template Version: Patrick Holm
Sam 

Rowswell

Sarah 

Gustafson
Alex Johnson George Hilen Melissa Oum

Phase &       

Task No.
Principal E4 Engineer E3 Engineer

T3 

Technician

PM2 Project 

Manager

Project 

Accountant

Total Direct Labor 

Hours & Cost
Total CostPhase & Task Title

4 -$                              

5 -$                              

Subtotal Hours: 2.0 9.0 11.0 16.0 38.0 5,602.00$                    

Task 4 2,506.00$                    

1 1.0 1.0 1.0 2.0 5.0 802.00$                       

2 1.0 1.0 4.0 6.0 997.00$                       

3 1.0 1.0 2.0 4.0 707.00$                       

Subtotal Hours: 3.0 3.0 7.0 2.0 15.0 2,506.00$                    

Total Phase Hours: 9.0 34.0 57.0 49.0 2.0 151.0 151.0$                         

Total Phase Direct Labor: $2,142.00 $6,086.00 $8,265.00 $5,880.00 $398.00 $22,771.00 22,771.00$                  

PHASE 4 $2,057.00 

Task 1 2,057.00$                    

1 1.0 1.0 8.0 4.0 14.0 2,057.00$                    

Subtotal Hours: 1.0 1.0 8.0 4.0 14.0 2,057.00$                    

Total Phase Hours: 1.0 1.0 8.0 4.0 14.0 14.0$                            

Total Phase Direct Labor: $238.00 $179.00 $1,160.00 $480.00 $2,057.00 2,057.00$                    

Total Hours All Phases 19.0 55.0 65.0 53.0 2.0 6.0 200.0 200.0

Total Direct Labor Estimate All Phases $4,522.00 $9,845.00 $9,425.00 $6,360.00 $398.00 $840.00 $31,390.00 31,390.00$                 

Indirect Costs

Subconsultants:

MNT2COAST $7,960.00

Subconsultant Subtotal: 7,960.00$                    

Subconsultant Markup: -$                              

Subconsultant Total: 7,960.00$                    

Reimbursable Expenses:

Copies, Printing, etc. 156.95$                       

Mileage 134.00$                       

Expenses Subtotal: 290.95$                       

Expenses Markup: -$                              

Expenses Total: 290.95$                       

Management Reserve: -$                              

Total Indirect Costs: 8,250.95$                

Total: 39,640.95$           

100% Contract Documents

100% Comment Resolution

Bid Ready Estiamte

Bid Ready Construction Documents

Bid Documents

Bid Ready Plans

BID SERVICES

Addendum

Addendum

Work Order # SCJ-25001 Page 10 of 10


	1 Agenda_20250401
	2 2025 Looking Ahead
	3 Vouchers_20250401
	4 Briefing C Street Landfill Financial Assurances Resolution 1369-0225
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	5 Resolution 1369-0225 with Exhibit A_C Street Landfill Budget
	6 Briefing Tow Contract
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	7 Res No 1370-0225_Towing Contract
	8 Draft contract with Summit Towing Inc
	9 DRAFT Minutes_20250121
	COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL

	10 Child Abuse Prevention Month Proclamation
	11 Agenda Briefing, WSDOT Striping Maint. Agreement Amendment
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	11 Resolution No 1366-1224 WSDOT Maint. Agreement Amendment
	12 WSDOT Maint. Agreement JC8574 Amendment #1
	13 WSDOT 2019 Striping Maintenance Agreement
	14 Briefing_G&O Reclaimed Tank Design Amend. #5
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	15 Resolution No 1374-0325 G&O Reclaimed Tank Amend No 5
	16 G&O Amend. No. 5_Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank
	17 Briefing Res. 1362-1124
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	18 RFQ 24-007 and QandA_Sys. Ped. Safety & OHN Design
	19 Overall Scoring Matrix_Sys. Ped. Safety & OHN Improvements
	20 Briefing TBD
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	21 Resolution No. 1376-0325 TBD
	22 Agenda Briefing, Oakland Bay Jr High Midblock Crossing
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	23 Resolution No. 1350_0924
	24 Work Order, SCJ Alliance Midblock Crossing Design

	Text Field 1: C8574 - 01
	Text Field 2: Olympic
	Text Field 3: 
	Text Field 4: 0.00
	Text Field 5: 01
	Text Field 6: City of Shelton
	Text Field 7: Highway Pavement Marking
	Text Field 8: 62000.00
	Text Field 9: 41698.44
	Text Field 10: 103698.44
	Text Field 11: To compensate WSDOT for pavement marking work performed from 2019 through 2024.
	Text Field 12: C8574
	Text Field 13: 30th
	Text Field 14: September
	Text Field 15: 19
	Text Field 16: Troy Cowan
	Text Field 17: WSDOT Olympic Region ARA for M&O
	Text Field 18: 
	Text Field 19: 
	Text Field 20: 
	Text Field 21: 


